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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation.  My name is John Liu,

          5  and I have the privilege of chairing this committee.

          6                 We have convened this hearing for the

          7  purpose of considering Proposed Intro 199-A, a bill

          8  that would require the New York City Department of

          9  Transportation to develop and monitor performance

         10  targets and performance indicators that will assist

         11  in assessing and reducing the amount of traffic in

         12  New York City.

         13                 This is an amended version of Intro

         14  No. 199 that has technical changes to organize it

         15  better and make it easier to read.  There are no

         16  substantive changes between Intro 199 and Proposed

         17  Intro 199-A.  This bill has been sponsored by Gale

         18  Brewer, and I will pass the floor over to her

         19  momentarily.

         20                 New York City is the greatest City in

         21  the world and the congestion that we have

         22  experienced in recent years is seemingly

         23  unprecedented.  If you ask the average person on the

         24  street, they will remark that the traffic is really

         25  choking them in their neighborhoods, and the issue

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  becomes that much more critical in light of a very

          3  detailed study conducted by the New York City

          4  Partnership that concludes that because of that

          5  traffic congestion, not only is it a feeling of

          6  choking that residents and neighborhoods are

          7  feeling, but that it is actually costing us in terms

          8  of jobs and economic development.

          9                 That New York City Partnership study

         10  concludes that we are losing up to 52,000 jobs a

         11  year in New York City as a result of the choking

         12  traffic congestion.

         13                 At the same time, there have been

         14  concerns voiced in communities throughout New York

         15  that the way we are managing traffic in the City

         16  needs to be improved, and part of the improvement

         17  has to be the redesign of the traffic measures or

         18  the measures that indicate to us how good or how bad

         19  the traffic management is.

         20                 Council Member Brewer has introduced

         21  a bill, Proposed Int. No. 199-A, that seeks to

         22  change some of the ways that our City measures that

         23  traffic, and how we measure our performance in

         24  managing that traffic.  Let me pass the floor over

         25  to Council Member Gale Brewer.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          3  much.  And certainly, my first thank you is to

          4  Council Member Liu for holding this hearing, and for

          5  the Speaker for permitting it, and certainly, his

          6  incredible staff and Shula Warren for our office.

          7                 I became interested in this topic

          8  because in my community on the West Side obviously

          9  traffic is an issue, and working with the Department

         10  of Transportation, and the incredible Borough

         11  Commissioner, Margaret Forgioni, we are working to

         12  look at the traffic and transportation issues in

         13  that area.  They have extra funding, engineers, and

         14  we are going to have a public hearing.

         15                 In doing the planning for that, one

         16  walks around and sees how things could be done

         17  differently, in terms of parking, and traffic

         18  mitigation measures, and you see that there is still

         19  a need for transparency, and that is what we are

         20  seeking today.

         21                 Obviously with an increase in New

         22  Yorkers, just in the other room there is a budget

         23  discussion going on as today the Mayor is releasing

         24  his budget, and the question is with more New

         25  Yorkers, more tourists, obviously comes, in many
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          2  cases, more traffic, unless we are able to focus on

          3  reducing the congestion.

          4                 I also think that, this bill doesn't

          5  address it, but one of the issues my Community Board

          6  7 brought to our attention, I think we all agree,

          7  certainly the Commissioner does, is that when we

          8  talk about reducing traffic, we have to increase

          9  more public transportation options.

         10                 For one, I took the subway here today

         11  from the West Side.  It is a whole lot faster, I

         12  think everybody will agree, than participating in a

         13  vehicle coming down highway.  On the other hand,

         14  that's not always true.  The issue of buses, in my

         15  neighborhood we did get the Pokey Award, some years

         16  ago, for some of the buses.  The question is how do

         17  we make sure the buses can move faster?   BRT is on

         18  the agenda, but there has to be other options for

         19  moving buses and getting more buses.

         20                 So, the issue today I think is

         21  certainly in the MMR, the Mayor's Management Report,

         22  there are lots of indicators talking about traffic

         23  signals being better managed, parking meters being

         24  converted to more electronic single space meters,

         25  and street work permits being looked at in terms of
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          2  being more streamlined.  Those I would call

          3  indicators, and what we are looking for today is

          4  targets.  So that we have both indicators but also

          5  targets for each specific mode of transportation,

          6  and that will hopefully, we think with this kind

          7  transparency, and with specific metrics that DOT

          8  would develop, would talk about traffic-flow

          9  improvement, facilitate the use of public

         10  transportation, reduce environmental and noise

         11  pollution concerns I think that the City Council and

         12  the Mayor have been grappling with, and the

         13  obviously increases positive health indicators.

         14                 So, I want to thank, again, the

         15  people whom I listed above, and also, certainly, the

         16  Department of Transportation because, as I

         17  indicated, we work very closely with them on an

         18  ongoing basis, particularly with the Manhattan

         19  office, and also Transportation Alternatives.  Thank

         20  you very much, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         22  We will also be joined by additional members later

         23  because there is a budget briefing that's being

         24  given by the Mayor's folks right now.  We are

         25  currently joined by Council Member Joe Addabbo from
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          2  Queens, a member of this Committee.  I think we look

          3  forward to a very productive discussion.  We have

          4  many members of the public who are going to testify

          5  in addition to Commissioner Weinshall, and her team.

          6  We have representatives from Transportation

          7  Alternatives, as well as the Straphangers Campaign,

          8  the Regional Plan Association, a number of

          9  consulting firms that have expertise in this matter,

         10  the Queens Chamber of Commerce, the New York City

         11  Partnership, and we are delighted that so many

         12  people and entities are interested in this matter,

         13  as are all New Yorkers.  I think there is no

         14  question that the traffic congestion out there is

         15  of, some would say, epic proportions.

         16                 In the past, the Mayor and his

         17  Administration has explained away the traffic

         18  congestion by almost saying that it is a good thing

         19  because it means that there is a lot of activity in

         20  New York City, but I think we have approached the

         21  stage where we can no longer simply say, oh, it's

         22  good to have traffic congestion because it means

         23  that are mulling about and that there is a great

         24  deal of economic activity in the city.  In fact, it

         25  is time that we proactively manage this, and in
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          2  order to manage a problem, we have to be able to

          3  measure it.

          4                 So, with that, let me welcome our

          5  Commissioner Iris Weinshall of the New York City

          6  Department of Transportation.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Good morning,

          8  Mr. Chairman, Council Member Brewer, and members of

          9  the Transportation Committee. I am Iris Weinshall,

         10  Commissioner of the New York City Department of

         11  Transportation.  With me here today is Giancarlo

         12  Bonagura, DOT's Deputy Commissioner for Procurement

         13  and Technical Services, and David Woloch, DOT's

         14  Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs. Thank you

         15  for providing us with this opportunity to testify on

         16  Intro 199.

         17                 This bill would require DOT to

         18  develop and monitor performance targets and

         19  indicators aimed at assessing and reducing the

         20  amount of traffic Citywide and within each borough.

         21  Specifically, targets geared towards reducing

         22  commuter times, emissions and driving times, and

         23  increasing the use of other modes of transportation,

         24  the availability of on-street parking, the efficient

         25  movement of commercial traffic and optimizing the
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          2  usage of our existing transportation infrastructure.

          3                 Furthermore, the bill would also

          4  require DOT to establish a database to track such

          5  indicators, as well as to submit a biannual written

          6  report to the Council.

          7                 First let me state that the spirit of

          8  this bill, that is, to assess transportation-related

          9  indicators with the aim of reducing congestion, is a

         10  goal that I think we all share.  Under the Bloomberg

         11  Administration, DOT has made reducing vehicular

         12  congestion and bolstering alternative modes one of

         13  our primary goals.  So many of our initiatives from

         14  Bus Rapid Transit to Thru Streets to our Muni-Meter

         15  Commercial Parking program to our bike lane

         16  expansion efforts reflect this focus.

         17                 However, the City Charter already

         18  requires the submittal of objectives and indicators

         19  as detailed in the Mayor's Management Report and,

         20  therefore, any legislation to require additional

         21  reporting seems redundant.

         22                 Under the Bloomberg Administration

         23  the MMR has, in fact, become the dynamic report card

         24  this legislation appears to contemplate.  It is

         25  constantly evolving as new indicators are added.  In
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          2  recent years, for example, we have added fatalities,

          3  the number of traffic monitoring cameras, and the

          4  change in number of private ferry passengers and

          5  routes, among others, to the report.

          6                 More importantly, I would like to

          7  point out that DOT is already, in fact, collecting

          8  and making available much of the data the bill

          9  contemplates.  DOT annually conducts screen-line

         10  counts of the number of vehicles on an hourly basis

         11  at all water crossings within the City and access

         12  points into the five boroughs, periodically collects

         13  vehicle occupancy counts, obtains bicycle volume

         14  counts and assesses the availability of curb space.

         15                 In addition to these examples, data

         16  is also collected for many specific DOT initiatives

         17  as part of their evaluation process, including Thru

         18  Streets, the '05 Transit Strike and the closure of

         19  the Central Park drives.  The data assist us in

         20  determining the effectiveness of particular

         21  initiatives - whether they are performing as

         22  anticipated or whether modifications are necessary.

         23  We also make available Safe Streets NYC: Traffic

         24  Safety Improvements in New York City, a

         25  comprehensive report of our many safety initiatives.
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          2                 While this data is publicly available

          3  on DOT's website, I have brought copies of these

          4  reports with me today and I would like to share them

          5  with the Committee.  We recognize that the

          6  information may be overwhelming and not in a format

          7  that the Committee finds readily accessible and,

          8  therefore, I invite the Committee to go through the

          9  reports and work with us and the Mayor's Office of

         10  Operations in identifying indicators that they would

         11  like to see presented in a different format or on a

         12  more frequent basis.

         13                 Most importantly, we share the

         14  sponsor's belief that there are new measures and new

         15  data collection efforts we must move forward on,

         16  and, in fact, we have already begun to proceed

         17  towards this goal.  Working with our regional

         18  partners, we are employing technology on a number of

         19  City highways to collect speed data and travel

         20  times, such as on the I-278 corridor that runs

         21  through Staten Island, Brooklyn, Queens and the

         22  Bronx.

         23                 Additionally, in Lower Manhattan we

         24  are in the process of piloting technology to create

         25  an ITS infrastructure package that will utilize
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          2  wireless traffic cameras, microwave sensors and

          3  other technology to collect myriad information,

          4  including travel speeds and volumes.

          5                 The point to be made here is that the

          6  use of new advancing technology as a means to

          7  collect data is right around the corner and once

          8  this technology proves to be reliable, the

          9  information collected will be made available.

         10                 Furthermore, as we look ahead to the

         11  Mayor's long-term sustainability plan and the new

         12  transportation initiatives that will arise from it,

         13  new performance targets and data collection efforts

         14  are sure to be developed.

         15                 I would, however, like to point out

         16  that while DOT is committed to working with the

         17  Council on data collection format and frequency, and

         18  moving forward on new data targets and data

         19  resources, it's important to note the vast resources

         20  that must go into these efforts.  Data collection is

         21  labor intensive requiring employees, consultants and

         22  equipment that all translates into the need for

         23  funds.  In fact, we are already planning to increase

         24  our data collection contract from $600,000, over two

         25  years, to $3 million dollars over two years.
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          2                 I would like to point out that by

          3  continuing our efforts to collect more data and to

          4  make it more readily available, City DOT can only

          5  represent a part of the story of how people and

          6  goods move through the five boroughs.  As you are

          7  well aware, many transportation functions in the

          8  City are provided by other agencies and

          9  jurisdictions, and many of our transportation

         10  challenges are regional in nature.  Intro 199 seems

         11  to ignore the multiple agency nature of our

         12  transportation systems.  Many non- mayoral entities

         13  play a role in our transportation network, from the

         14  New York City Transit to the commuter railroads, to

         15  New York State DOT to the Port Authority.

         16                 It is because of this regional

         17  paradigm that the federal government established

         18  Metropolitan Planning Organization, or MPO, for the

         19  country's urban areas.  The New York Metropolitan

         20  Transportation Council, or NYMTC, is an association

         21  of governments, transportation providers and

         22  environmental agencies that serve New York City,

         23  Long Island and the lower Hudson Valley.  It

         24  provides a collaborative planning forum to address

         25  transportation related issues from a regional
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          2  perspective.  In this role, NYMTC assembles a great

          3  deal of regional mobility data from City DOT, the

          4  MTA, the Port Authority, New Jersey Transit, and on

          5  its own, a fact Intro 199 does not seem to address.

          6                 In sum, DOT already sets numerous

          7  targets in the MMR, currently makes a great deal of

          8  data available, is committed to working with the

          9  Council on data collection format and frequency, and

         10  most importantly, is embarking on new frontiers to

         11  obtain and communicate new data resources.  Intro

         12  199 therefore seems premature and arguably

         13  unnecessary now given DOT's current efforts and also

         14  fails to account for the many jurisdictions that

         15  comprise our City's transportation system.

         16            I want to thank you for the opportunity to

         17  be here today and we would be happy to answer some

         18  questions of the Committee.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         20  Commissioner. We always appreciate your testimony

         21  and the insight that it provides this Committee.

         22  Really just to get to the heart of the matter which

         23  is congestion, is there a challenge with traffic

         24  congestion today?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I
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          2  think, Mr. Chairman, as you have heard me say

          3  before, before this Committee, after 9/11 traffic

          4  dropped dramatically in the City of New York.  The

          5  numbers and the indication that we have today is

          6  that we are at or a little bit above the pre 9/11

          7  data or the pre 9/11 number of cars both entering

          8  and leaving the City of New York.  We would not

          9  characterize it as a crisis.  We would characterize

         10  it as a challenge.  The City has 8.2 million people

         11  in terms of population. There are a number of areas

         12  in the City that are experiencing tremendous growth

         13  and expansion, and there are a number of boroughs

         14  that have their own central business districts that

         15  are emerging.

         16                 Mr. Chairman, I don't have to tell

         17  you, and you are part of Queens, in Flushing, we

         18  have a central business district that's emerging, in

         19  downtown Brooklyn.  So, we view it as a challenge

         20  and not as a crisis.  As I have said before, before

         21  this Committee, it is an indication of the vitality

         22  and the growth of the City of New York.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, you are saying

         24  that the traffic volumes entering  -- when you say

         25  the City, you mean Manhattan, right?  Entering
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          2  Manhattan?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We monitor it

          4  by different zones.  Our screen-line report looks at

          5  it at different areas, and I could talk about

          6  Manhattan, but we look at it at all different areas

          7  in the City.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Let's

          9  say, if we focus on Manhattan just because even

         10  though there is a great deal of congestion outside

         11  of Manhattan, Manhattan is an island so it's almost

         12  easier to gauge the number of cars and number of

         13  vehicles coming into and leaving Manhattan.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: In our

         15  report, we do define the Central Business District,

         16  and I think that's what you are getting at, the

         17  Central Business District in Manhattan.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So, are we

         19  looking at a five percent increase over pre 9/11

         20  levels, or are we looking at a ten percent increase?

         21                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I was going

         22  to say two percent, but Mike Premeggia thinks it is

         23  somewhere between one and two percent.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, there is less

         25  than a two percent increase in traffic volume
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          2  entering the Central  --

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Coming into

          4  the Central Business District, coming in and leaving

          5  the Central Business District.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is that just based

          7  on a count of total vehicles that are entering the

          8  Central Business District?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Again, we do

         10  a screen-line and maybe David you want to give the

         11  Chairman --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Sure.  We

         13  have the reports here.  We collect the volume data

         14  in a number of different ways.  As we've said, we

         15  collect it coming in Manhattan's Central Business

         16  District, but we also collect the data over 50

         17  waterway crossings throughout the five boroughs.  So

         18  there are number of locations outside of Manhattan

         19  obviously.  We also collect volume data coming into

         20  the City from access points all around the City,

         21  and, again, including all five boroughs.

         22                 We have the most recent version of

         23  all these reports with us and they are also

         24  available on our website.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: The report
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          2  that David is referring to is the New York City

          3  Screen-line Traffic Flow 2005, and if you go through

          4  the report, Mr. Chairman, as David said, it goes

          5  through a number of crossing and it tracks the

          6  volume of the cars both coming in and leaving over

          7  those crossings.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's is just based

          9  on a simple count of vehicles that are coming over

         10  the crossings  --  a brief description of how

         11  exactly you determine the traffic volumes.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Sure.  I

         13  mean it's a pretty straight-forward process.  In

         14  this case, the technology is relatively simple.  You

         15  have --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yeah. You have the

         17  two wires on the road.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Right,

         19  and it captures the axles as they cross them, and

         20  vehicles for the most part have two axles.  In other

         21  instances, we will capture other data, such as

         22  occupancy and also vehicle classification, but the

         23  volume data is relatively simple.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  So you

         25  do have a way to differentiate between the different
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          2  kinds of vehicles?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Depending

          4  on the kind of counting we are doing.  So in some

          5  instances we focus on counting classification. Most

          6  of the data in these reports gets at the actual

          7  volume number, the total number of vehicles.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  But, so,

          9  there is not really a differentiation between, say,

         10  a car with one person in it and a bus with 50 people

         11  in it?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We have,

         13  particularly recently, begun to do occupancy

         14  collection as well.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  But there's

         16  not a whole lot available on that?  Because that

         17  would be one of the measures that would need to be

         18  contemplated and implemented.  This is what we are

         19  talking about, new and better measures.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: One of

         21  the reports that we have made available on our web,

         22  is our Transit Strike Report which captures a lot of

         23  occupancy data.  We have that here, and, again, it's

         24  on our website.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  How does that
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          2  translate into --  I mean, the goal of it is

          3  obviously it's not to just to collect numbers for

          4  the sake of collecting numbers.  It's to collect

          5  numbers so that changes could be contemplated and

          6  implemented to ease the flow of traffic.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: As I said in

          8  my testimony, Mr. Chairman, if the format that we

          9  are using is not getting the data which you would

         10  like to arrive at, this is something that we would

         11  be happy to work with the Council on.  As I also

         12  said in my testimony, that type of data collection

         13  is much more labor intensive and much more expensive

         14  than the type of data collection we are doing right

         15  now.  We would be happy, if the Council would go

         16  through the report, if there are certain features

         17  that they would like to discuss with us, we'd be

         18  happy to sit down with the Council and discuss those

         19  features of the report.  And how we can make that

         20  data -- I think what you are saying is you want the

         21  data to be a little more dynamic and we can

         22  appreciate that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, and I

         24  appreciate your offer, Commissioner, and I know we

         25  can always work together on these matters.  We will
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          2  hear from many of the transportation experts, some

          3  of whom are involved in the NYMTC that you referred

          4  to in your testimony.  I think we will hear varying

          5  opinions about whether the current data collection

          6  efforts are adequate or perhaps not.  The idea that

          7  data collection is labor intensive, and, therefore

          8  costly is a valid point, but it also needs to be

          9  said that, that is one of the primary functions of

         10  the Department of Transportation to collect and

         11  analyze this data.  It's hard to say that it's hard

         12  to collect data because it's labor intensive and

         13  costly when, in fact, under the City Charter that's

         14  one of the primary directives for the Department of

         15  Transportation.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Actually, I

         17  am not suggesting it shouldn't happen.  I am just

         18  making a point in pointing out that fact.  I am not

         19  saying that it shouldn't happen at all.  I am just

         20  pointing out that there is a cost associated with

         21  it.  I am not saying it should not happen.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure. Okay.  We'll

         23  obviously hear some suggestions from other people

         24  who are testifying today about what better measures

         25  the Department of Transportation can enact.
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          2                 Again, it's not about the collection

          3  of data and statistics.  It's about what we do with

          4  that kind of information. So, I think I have been a

          5  very, very big fan of the cross streets that were

          6  implemented a number of years ago.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: You mean the

          8  Thru Streets.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I am sorry the Thru

         10  Streets, and that did appear to decrease the amount

         11  of time that it takes cars to get from one side to

         12  the other side of Manhattan.  That was based on,

         13  presumably, some collection of data that indicated

         14  that such a change, at least first with a pilot

         15  program, would reduce that amount of time that it

         16  takes.  Can you give us another example of how

         17  collecting data leads to a change in the traffic

         18  patterns within the Central Business District?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, another

         20  announcement that we made in the late fall, early

         21  winter, had to do with Times Square, and the Bow Tie

         22  in Times Square.  We had, working with the Times

         23  Square BID, we collected data, they worked with the

         24  consultant, Philip Habib, where we concerned about

         25  the amount of pedestrian traffic in Times Square.
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          2  Clearly, this sidewalk space wasn't sufficient to

          3  accommodate all of the pedestrians who are now

          4  working in Times Square and coming to Times Square.

          5  So, working with the data that was collected by the

          6  Alliance's consultant, we determined that what we

          7  wanted to do was to close the crossover up, and to

          8  eventually create more pedestrian space for

          9  individuals in Times Square.  We had to do a lot of

         10  data collection before we did that change to figure

         11  out where the cars would go if they couldn't make

         12  that crossover.  We have before data and we will

         13  collecting data now after the close up has happened.

         14                 But that is an example of where we

         15  worked to not only to take away space from the

         16  roadway ultimately from vehicles, but we will be

         17  adding more sidewalk space for pedestrians.  That is

         18  just one example of another initiative that we have

         19  put in effect in the Central Business District.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Could there be an

         21  example of what the Department has done, apart from

         22  easing the flow of traffic contemplating the

         23  movement of pedestrians within the Central Business

         24  District?  What is an example of something the

         25  Department may have done in order to help decrease
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          2  the amount of traffic that's actually coming into

          3  the Central Business District?  Perhaps that not

          4  necessarily a function of the DOT.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, one of

          6  the initiatives that we were able to herald is to

          7  create a number of HOV lanes in the City of New

          8  York.  One has to do with an HOV three lane that now

          9  is on the Gowanus, as well as there is an HOV lane

         10  leading on the LIE leading into the Queens Midtown

         11  Tunnel.  The goal there is to reward people who take

         12  more than one person in their car allowing them to

         13  go in and HOV lane that moves at a much faster pace,

         14  and, thereby, if there would normally be three cars

         15  coming in, now there would only be one car.  So, one

         16  initiative has to do with HOV lanes in the City of

         17  New York.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Great.  I have a

         19  couple of more questions.  Let me announce that we

         20  are being joined by Council Member Larry Seabrook

         21  from the Bronx, and we have questions from Council

         22  Member Brewer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         24  much.  I think what I am interested in, I think we

         25  all are, is trying to get people out of their car
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          2  and into public transportation. Unfortunately, or

          3  fortunately, I don't know, people do, understandably

          4  I would say, vote with their feet so to speak so

          5  they go where they are most comfortable or where

          6  it's least expensive or where they have an

          7  opportunity to move faster. Certainly the HOV lanes

          8  address some of that.  I guess my question is if you

          9  are talking about traffic information, I am just

         10  wondering if there are some gaps?

         11                 In other words, it would be

         12  interesting, again this is working in conjunction I

         13  guess either through NYMTC it would have to be, as

         14  you suggested, a more coordinated discussion, but

         15  finding out some indicators of comfort, convenience,

         16  and kind of attractiveness of alternative modes.

         17  Then even things like sort of no traffic delay data,

         18  that kind of thing, and then traffic speeds.  Things

         19  that could indicate what people would do if they had

         20  the opportunity.  The data would be used to be a

         21  target, not just collected, but would give a target

         22  as to what it would take to change their mode of

         23  transportation.  How does that sort of thinking go

         24  into your planning?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Well, I
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          2  agree with you.  I mean, it's ultimately our goal to

          3  get as many people out of their cars and to get them

          4  to use mass transportation.  In the borough that you

          5  represent, Manhattan, it's the lowest car ownership

          6  in the entire City of New York.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In the

          8  country, I think actually.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I am just

         10  worried about the City so.  I might add that Staten

         11  Island has the highest car ownership in the City.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's

         13  correct.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I think the

         15  key is to present to people affordable, attractive

         16  mass transportation options.  Two areas that we are

         17  working on at DOT, one has to do with BRT, Bus Rapid

         18  Transit, and as this Committee knows we announced in

         19  conjunction with the MTA we are going to be doing a

         20  pilot program with BRT in each of the five boroughs.

         21  Clearly, if people knew that bus service was more

         22  reliable,  it could get them to their destination at

         23  a faster speed, I think that, or I believe, I know

         24  that, more people would use bus transportation.

         25  Clearly on the East Side of Manhattan, where we are

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  going to have the first pilot, we have a lack of

          3  subway service.  So if we can get more people to use

          4  buses that would be a good thing.

          5                 In addition, we are, and Councilman

          6  Addabbo knows this, endeavoring to attract more

          7  ferry operators in the region.  As everyone knows,

          8  it has been DOT and EDC's philosophy that we build

          9  the infrastructure.  So if you build it, they will

         10  come.  If there are ferry terminals, then operators

         11  will come in and operate ferry routes.  I have often

         12  said to this Committee before that I believe that if

         13  we could somehow figure out how to make ferry

         14  transit more affordable and to make the system more

         15  seamless, and what I mean is, if there were bus

         16  routes that took people to ferries then more people

         17  would use ferry service in the City of New York.  I

         18  am very glad that my friend, Lee Sander, is now the

         19  Executive Director of the MTA  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: We are all

         21  glad.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: When he

         23  settles in, you can be sure that we are going to try

         24  and go over and talk to him about extending these

         25  bus routes and possibly incorporating more ferry
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          2  service into this regional approach.  New York City

          3  DOT sits on NYMTC and both Rockland and Westchester

          4  County are clamoring for more ferry service from

          5  their areas.  People don't want to be driving into

          6  the City.  They would prefer to take some other

          7  alternative mode.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's exactly

          9  what I was asking.  In other words, the coordination

         10  between the MTA and DOT, ways of getting more people

         11  to use mass transportation.  That seems to be the

         12  core of what we're talking about.  But, in order, to

         13  get the congestion lowered, and the MTA is only

         14  going to be able to function if the congestion is

         15  lowered.  It is a very multi-tasking enterprise,

         16  obviously, and I know you are attempting at that.  I

         17  feel strongly that some of these gaps in traffic

         18  information that I mentioned need to be collected

         19  because they can be used as a target as opposed to

         20  just collecting them.  Certainly you indicated that

         21  by working in the Times Square area, hopefully you

         22  are going to allow more pedestrians to move safely

         23  through that area.  I guess that is what we are

         24  talking about Citywide.  That data is a target.

         25  That's really being used as a target to get to your
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          2  goal.  I feel like what's in the MMR and what you're

          3  collecting is certainly important.  It does seem to

          4  me that it could actually be used to be more

          5  transparent.  I understand that you said that only

          6  two percent more traffic in the Central Business

          7  District, but if you talk or listen to some of the

          8  concerns of New Yorkers, it certainly feels like

          9  congestion is a high priority, and I think it's a

         10  high priority of the sustainable task force.  So

         11  everybody realizes congestion is an issue, even

         12  though that two percent sounds low.  I think that

         13  what we are also saying is not only do we want mass

         14  transit, we want bicyclists and pedestrians to be

         15  able to utilize even more than what you might feel

         16  is safe.  In other words, to be a place that there

         17  really is a feeling that I can bicycle, I can walk,

         18  I can use some other than vehicle of transportation

         19  like a bus.  Right now the buses move very slowly.

         20  There is no question about that.  So, what I want

         21  you to address is, how do you take this data and use

         22  it as a target to be able to have people feel

         23  comfortable in these alternative modes of

         24  transportation. Comfortable and use them, as opposed

         25  to their car?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, as I

          3  said in my testimony, it's not just DOT's role to be

          4  able to collect this data and to analyze this data.

          5  I might point out that the MTA collects an enormous

          6  amount of data of which we are not party to.  We

          7  don't have that information.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That would be

          9  a coordinating function, hopefully with Lee Sander.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yeah.

         11  Absolutely, and again with Lee at the MTA now I am

         12  hopeful we can better partner with the MTA to really

         13  determine what type of data they can give us.  The

         14  other thing is that I know the MTA has testified

         15  here many times. The Chairman knows that we usually

         16  testify after them.  We are always delayed because

         17  there are so many questions.  The mass transit

         18  system, particularly the subway system, is at

         19  capacity or near capacity.  I think one of the

         20  things that we as a region have to sort of keep in

         21  mind is if we are enticing people to go out of their

         22  vehicles, and to take mass transportation, then that

         23  has to be available and has to be available in, as

         24  you said, a good manner, in an easy to use manner,

         25  and one which doesn't delay people because
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          2  inevitably you are creating an expectation, and then

          3  people will get fed up after a while and they will

          4  just go back into their cars.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

          6  Council Member Brewer.  And thank you, Commissioner.

          7  By the way, we would never want the DOT to think

          8  that you are second fiddle to the MTA.  Maybe it

          9  will make you feel better at the next budget

         10  hearing, we will have the DOT go first.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: You know, Mr.

         12  Chairman, it's quite all right because you usually

         13  exhaust yourselves.  By the time you finish with

         14  them, there is very little for me to have to argue

         15  with you about.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Great.

         17  We have a few more questions.  I just want to ask

         18  the next panel to prepare to testify.  That will be

         19  Paul White from Transportation Alternatives, Teresa

         20  Toro from the Tri-State Transportation Campaign, and

         21  Gene Russianoff from Straphangers Campaign.

         22                 There was a report issued about two

         23  weeks ago that talked about how the vast majority of

         24  the traffic entering the Central Business District,

         25  or I think they may have said entering Manhattan,
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          2  but regardless, entering Manhattan or the Central

          3  Business District, was actually comprised of

          4  vehicles that originated within the five boroughs.

          5  Are you familiar with that report?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I heard about

          7  the report. Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: See when I read

          9  about that report, it's disturbing and at the same

         10  time not totally surprising because I think there

         11  have been a great deal of dissatisfaction from New

         12  Yorkers who live in the further reaches of the five

         13  boroughs that public transportation coming from Long

         14  Island and Westchester and New Jersey is superior to

         15  that of the transportation that is afforded to New

         16  Yorkers that live within the five boroughs, or at

         17  least the New Yorkers who live in the farther

         18  reaches.  Does the Department of Transportation, and

         19  maybe your agency is not the one to do this, but

         20  does the DOT have any information about where

         21  exactly the traffic volume coming into the Central

         22  Business District is originating?

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Again, the

         24  Screen-line Report looks at those crossings so we

         25  have a pretty good sense where the cars are coming

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  from.  I agree with you, Mr. Chairman.  I think that

          3  there are parts of the City that don't have adequate

          4  mass transportation.  And, again, looking at issues

          5  like ferry transportation, looking at areas like

          6  BRT, and working more closely with the MTA, I think

          7  we have to start thinking about providing more

          8  adequate mass transportation.

          9                 To be honest with you, Mr. Chairman,

         10  it boggles my mind that people would prefer to sit

         11  in traffic, as opposed to getting into mass

         12  transportation, but I think you raise a very good

         13  point.  In many parts of the City, it's not a

         14  one-seat ride, like Ms. Brewer's constituents are

         15  afforded, or Councilman Garodnick's constituents are

         16  afforded.  There are parts of Queens, particularly

         17  the Rockaways, where people could very well have a

         18  two- or three-seat ride before they get into the

         19  Central Business District.  I think that is a larger

         20  debate and a larger discussion that needs to be had

         21  with the MTA.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         23  Commissioner.  We have been joined by Council Member

         24  Daniel Garodnick from Manhattan, and Council Member

         25  Miguel Martinez from Manhattan.
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          2                 We appreciate your comments about the

          3  ferries.  I think that has also been a subject a

          4  discussion between this committee and your

          5  department about how best we can really implement

          6  ferry service from an area such as the Rockaways.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I think

          8  Councilman Addabbo knows this that we have now been

          9  working very effectively with Congressman Weiner who

         10  had appropriated some Federal money that we are

         11  looking to reprogram and use for a pilot ferry

         12  program from the Rockaways.

         13                 I might add, Mr. Chairman, that ferry

         14  service is very subject to the whims of economic

         15  things that happen in the country.  At a time when

         16  fuel costs were going up, many of the fast ferries

         17  that we use in this region use a lot of fuel, and,

         18  therefore, they found that they were sort of stuck

         19  in this crunch because they had to charge people

         20  more money.  When they had to charge people more

         21  money, people said well forget about this, I am not

         22  going to take the ferry anymore.  We have seen a

         23  number of ferry services that have basically

         24  disappeared.  Seastreak is one of them.  They no

         25  longer operate here in the region.  Again, I think
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          2  as a region, we have to sort of look at this great

          3  resource we have, which is the waterways that

          4  surround Manhattan, and figure this out.  I might

          5  point out that, again, going with the adage, if you

          6  build it, they will come, DOT and EDC is in the

          7  process of building a new ferry facility at 90th

          8  Street, and we are going to be beginning the upgrade

          9  the ferry facility at 34th Street.  Not to mention

         10  the ferry facility that we just completed last year

         11  at Pier 79, which is a beautiful structure, and we

         12  would like to see more operators coming in there.

         13  That would be a natural, by the way Mr. Chairman,

         14  for any type of ferry service that would come from

         15  either Westchester or Rockland because it would come

         16  down the Hudson.

         17                 I might point out that New York

         18  Waterways, which operates out of 79th Street,

         19  because there is no point to point connection has to

         20  provide their own bus service. So, again, taking it

         21  as a regional approach, I think we sort of have to

         22  look at those issues and sort of analyze them as a

         23  region.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. We have

         25  been joined by Council Member Darlene Mealy from
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          2  Brooklyn.

          3                 Going back a little bit to the report

          4  that was published about two weeks ago.  Based on

          5  your Screen-line Report, would you agree with that

          6  report that concluded that the vast majority of the

          7  traffic coming into the Central Business District

          8  does originate from within the five boroughs?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: David points

         10  out to me that pretty much matches what City

         11  Planning data from the census that we have been able

         12  to incorporate into our data shows.  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Is there

         14  anything more specific than just being able to tell

         15  that the traffic is originating from within the five

         16  boroughs?

         17                 For example, is a lot of that traffic

         18  originating from Queens versus Brooklyn or other

         19  boroughs?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

         21  it's fair to say there is a lot of traffic

         22  originating from all the boroughs, and, in fact, one

         23  of the conclusions of that report is that there was

         24  a lot of traffic generated in Manhattan.  So I think

         25  there is traffic coming from all parts of the City.
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          2  Particularly, as the Commissioner pointed out

          3  earlier, from some parts of the City that are under

          4  served by transit.  So, I think the data shows it's

          5  not a localized problem in a few parts of the City,

          6  that it's an issue in all five boroughs.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: As a member of

          8  NYMTC, the coordinating entity, what kind of effort

          9  does the DOT undertake, within that coordinating

         10  body, to push the idea that the traffic congestion

         11  needs to be relieved by more mass transit?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: As a matter

         13  of fact, if you talk to the members of NYMTC, for

         14  the last two years, when, as a matter of fact, when

         15  Tom Swaze (phonetic) was the Chairman, you know, we

         16  rotate Chairmen of NYMTC, we spent a lot of time in

         17  NYMTC talking about this very issue, and talking

         18  about it from a regional approach, not just from a

         19  New York City approach, and the clear consensus was

         20  that no one entity could really be the swaying mark

         21  here.  That it was a regional issue, a regional

         22  problem and one that we all face together.  The

         23  folks from Rockland County spent a lot of time

         24  talking about the one bridge that connects, and what

         25  are the alternatives.  There were a lot of time
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          2  spent at NYMTC spent talking about ferry service,

          3  additional bus service and train service into the

          4  City of New York.  So this was, for the last two

          5  years, a big point of discussion within NYMTC.  I

          6  believe, Mr. Chairman, I think you attended one of

          7  the meetings that we discussed this.  Am I

          8  incorrect?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I don't think I

         10  personally did, but perhaps someone from my office

         11  did.

         12                 Look I don't think we can ever

         13  divorce ourselves from the regional aspect of this,

         14  but I think if a great deal, or the vast majority,

         15  of the traffic is originating within the five

         16  boroughs then we may not be able to expect as much

         17  support from the coordinating body as a whole.  We

         18  may have to take a more proactive stance within our

         19  own departments right here in New York City.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I think,

         21  though, one of the clear outcomes of the work that

         22  NYMTC did last year was that the recognition that

         23  New York City is clearly the economic engine of the

         24  region, and so goes New York, so goes the region.

         25  Understanding that in order to attract more jobs and
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          2  keep jobs in New York City, clearly, we needed to

          3  all deal with the issue of congestion coming into

          4  the City and in the suburbs, as well.  So, it's not

          5  just a New York City phenomena.  As a result of the

          6  work that we did on the Staten Island Task Force,

          7  that is still ongoing, it was very interesting in

          8  terms of not only the amount of traffic that flows

          9  into the City but that flows out of the City, as

         10  well. The City Planning has does a lot of work in

         11  this area, in terms of the number of people who work

         12  outside the City, as well work in the City.  So, the

         13  flow is just not coming in, there is a great deal of

         14  flow going out as well.  And as David reminds me,

         15  within each borough.

         16                 One of the interesting statistics

         17  that City Planning pointed out to us when we were

         18  doing our Staten Island work is that majority of

         19  Staten Islanders actually work on Staten Island of

         20  those who are employed.  Again, this all came from

         21  the census data that they have been collecting over

         22  the years.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  We have

         24  some questions from Council Member Daniel Garodnick.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you
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          2  very much, Mr. Chairman --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm sorry.  Let me

          4  say that we have been joined by Council Member

          5  Jessica Lappin from Manhattan.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman. Commissioner, nice to see you and

          8  thank you for being here.  I just wanted to start

          9  off by saying that, as you know, my district is one

         10  which is particularly challenged when it comes to

         11  congestion issues, and this is a bill which is

         12  obviously one of interest to me.  I have up to this

         13  point not signed on as a co-sponsor because I wanted

         14  to hear your testimony today.  Of course, I did come

         15  in late, but I had a chance to scan what you said

         16  and wanted to just follow up on just a couple of

         17  points with you.  It seems to me that the issue here

         18  in reading your comment that you agree with the

         19  spirit of the bill, that setting goals for the

         20  purpose of reducing congestion, and you know,

         21  increasing the proportion of walking and other

         22  things are goals that you share with the sponsor and

         23  sponsors of the bill, but the issue here is what is

         24  already required of you, versus what this would

         25  require of you, as I understand it -- the level of
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          2  redundancy, I think as I understand your testimony,

          3  if that's a fair point?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I think I

          5  wouldn't use such harsh words as require.  I think

          6  that we already collect a lot of data and I think

          7  that's our intent, and maybe the format that we've

          8  put it in, or the texture of the data is really not

          9  something that is user-friendly.  That was one

         10  point.

         11                 The other point is that because of

         12  all the IT advancements that we will making over the

         13  next couple of years, we believe that there will be

         14  even more data that we'll be collecting and we want

         15  to work with the Council to be able to put that in a

         16  format that is more dynamic and user-friendly for

         17  both legislators and the public and the Mayor and

         18  for us an as agency.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  I

         20  appreciate that. I used the word "require" because

         21  of your comment in the testimony the City Charter

         22  requires that you do certain things in the Mayor's

         23  Management Report.  What I want to explore with you

         24  for a minute was what objectives and indicators are

         25  required by the charter versus the ones which are
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          2  actually incorporated in this bill?   For example,

          3  one of the targets and indicators in Intro 199 is to

          4  reduce commute time citywide --

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I'm sorry.  I

          6  was --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: That's

          8  okay.  That's all right.  One of the targets and

          9  indicators in this bill, in 199, is to reduce

         10  commute time citywide.  Now is that something which

         11  is included in the Mayor's Management Report from

         12  the DOT today?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I am going to

         14  have  --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: (Not

         16  using microphone.)... is the mechanism, the formal

         17  mechanism for reporting data.  While that specific

         18  indicator might not be in the MMR right now, there

         19  is certainly things we could do to modify it.  So

         20  the mechanism for reporting the data is there, it's

         21  just a matter of formulating the proper types of

         22  indicators that would reflect that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Meaning, if

         24  I understand you, that the mechanism being the

         25  Mayor's Management Report from your perspective that
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          2  would be your disclosure mechanism?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: But that

          5  today it is not included in the Mayor's Management

          6  Report.  Is that right?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: Well

          8  also, as the Commissioner pointed out, there are

          9  formats.  There is data available.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So you have

         11  it.  So you have it is what you are saying.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: Yeah.

         13  There is a lot of data report, and one of them,

         14  again, is the Screen-line Report.  It's a matter of

         15  maybe perhaps taking some of the things that perhaps

         16  taking some of the things that already exist in

         17  different formats and maybe putting them in the MMR.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  So

         19  then let's go the question then may be not whether

         20  it is presently included in the MMR, but the

         21  question is then whether you gather it; right? I

         22  mean, one of the questions is are there targets and

         23  indicators today to reduce commute time?

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I wouldn't

         25  characterize it as "targets and indicators."  Before
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          2  you came here, there are a number of reports --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Yeah.  I'm

          4  sorry.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: That's okay

          6   -- that we generate both on an annual basis and

          7  project specific which give us a lot of data.  What

          8  we are saying is it may be in a form or format that

          9  is not user-friendly, or maybe it's not being

         10  collected at a quick enough pace.  So that we want

         11  to work with the Council, and what we ask is that we

         12  brought all these reports with us, we'd like the

         13  staff of the Council and our staff to work together

         14  to sort of more narrowly define what we can do to

         15  make this more dynamic - to make the data more

         16  dynamic.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So is it

         18  fair to say then that you don't object to developing

         19  targets and indicators, or you may even have the

         20  data collected in terms of what progress you've

         21  made, or what is happening, but that you don't

         22  object to setting targets and indicators for the

         23  Department?

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We don't.

         25  But what I also said is that the agency is embarking
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          2  on an enormous IT initiative. As a result of that,

          3  we will have even more dynamic data, more accurate

          4  data on almost a daily basis as compared to the type

          5  of analysis that we do now.  What we are saying is

          6  that -- I guess it's two things that we are saying

          7   -- number one, right now, we'd like to go through

          8  the data and the information that we have and figure

          9  out how we can make it, today, more current, more

         10  accessible.  What we feel is that 199 may be a

         11  little premature at this point in terms of going

         12  further because there will be even more information

         13  in a couple of years that will help us, working with

         14  the Council, once we have all this data, to figure

         15  out what targets and what milestones would really

         16  make sense.

         17                 Would you agree with that.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I suppose

         20  then the question is -- and let me just make sure I

         21  understand your point, Commissioner, which is I

         22  think that you are  --

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Councilman,

         24  can I just  -- David reminds me of one other point.

         25  You can't set targets until you start collecting the
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          2  data, and what we are saying is we agree with the

          3  spirit of 199, we just think that it's a little

          4  premature now because we will have just so much more

          5  data after all of this IT initiative is up and we

          6  can collect the data in a more dynamic way.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay. So

          8  then --  I'm sorry to go back to this -- but I just

          9  want to understand then what of the elements in this

         10  bill include data that you already have?

         11                 I mean, for example, as I see it

         12  here, there are a number of different categories of

         13  data that this bill seeks to collect.  One is to

         14  reduce commute time, reducing household exposure to

         15  roadway emissions; right?  Reducing the proportion

         16  of driving in the Central Business District.  I

         17  don't know if these are in, and I'm sorry that I

         18  don't have the Green Book, and I think that you

         19  handed it out probably before I got  --

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: No, I didn't

         21  hand it out.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  I'm

         23  sorry, but I don't know if you collect the data, and

         24  I know that it's a raw form and that maybe it can

         25  user friendly and maybe this IT initiative will make
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          2  it more user friendly.  The first question then is

          3  do you collect the data that this bill seeks to ask

          4  you to collect today?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: We do

          6  collect some of the data, and I think  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: No.  Let's

          8  just explore which of the data you don't collect.

          9  Just so I understand what you do now relative to

         10  what the bill is asking of you, because I just don't

         11  understand that point, and that was the reason why I

         12  have not yet signed on to the bill?  I wanted to

         13  understand that point from you all as to what are we

         14  really asking of the DOT here that you don't do;

         15  what are we asking of you that would be a reasonable

         16  thing for the Council to ask for reporting in the

         17  spirit of this bill?  Which I think, and

         18  Commissioner you acknowledged in your testimony,

         19  this is something we all agree in spirit, so I just

         20  want to understand what data is in this bill today

         21  that you do not presently collect?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: You're

         23  talking, first of all, in very broad strokes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Let's

         25  narrow it down then. Do you collect data on the
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          2  reduction of commuting time from one year to the

          3  next?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: We

          5  collect data on the volume of cars and other things.

          6  What you're talking about, what you are specifically

          7  talking about is a target.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I am

          9  talking about a target.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: A

         11  target would have to be set. So goals are attached

         12   --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: To targets.

         14  Right.  But I guess the question is if you have the

         15  data on volume of cars coming into the City, then

         16  you can set a target, right? I mean, I am just going

         17  back to the Commissioner's comments of a minute ago

         18  which was that you need to have the data to be able

         19  to set a target.  So and I'm sorry that I'm asking

         20  them in both in the general and take a step back

         21  sort of question and also very specific.  It's only

         22  because I just don't really understand.

         23                 So you have the volume of cars coming

         24  into the City from one year to the next by various

         25  categories; is that right?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: You

          3  have to also remember what the Commissioner said

          4  earlier.  We are part of a regional --  region of

          5  different  -- other entities that are involved in

          6  making transportation policy.  So setting targets

          7  for cars you also have to include these other groups

          8  that also have to do other things like create more

          9  mass transportation.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I think

         11  that's an excellent point, too.  I don't know really

         12  how to address that challenge, and that's a real

         13  one, because it's hard to set a target for DOT in a

         14  vacuum without exploring all of that.  With that in

         15  mind, and I think that's something that we should

         16  explore together because that is a real issue.  But

         17  that being said, there are certain things that the

         18  DOT could set itself, right, as targets, if it

         19  wanted to, based on the data it is collecting or

         20  could collect in the future; is that fair to say?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: I think

         22  the Commissioner said we would be willing to sit

         23  down with  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Right.  So

         25  I guess the question then is -- so let's just go
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          2  through them real quick since I don't want to be not

          3  specific with you.

          4                 You collect the data on the volume of

          5  cars that are commuting in New York City.  That's

          6  data that you have.  How about --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: By the way,

          8  Councilman, I just want to point out, which I said

          9  before you got here, there are specific reports that

         10  will look at volume data, as well.  When we close

         11  certain roadways in Central Park and Prospect Park

         12   --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: You closed a

         14  few more, but you are doing great.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Thank you.

         16  Coming from you, Council Member, I think that's a

         17  huge compliment and I appreciate it.

         18                 So, we have data on distinct projects

         19  that we are doing. Before you came in, we talked

         20  about Times Square and closing the Bow Tie.  So we

         21  have data there.  On specific projects that we are

         22  working on, we will also collect data.  So, I just

         23  want to point that out.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So you have

         25  it both in the aggregate and with regard to specific
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          2   --

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We have it in

          4  the annual report and we have it project specific.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

          6  Great.  How about data on household exposure to

          7  roadway emissions; is that something that you

          8  collect today?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We don't.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: That's not

         11  something. Okay.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We don't, but

         13  you know there may be a --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Does

         15  anybody?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: You may want

         17  to check with DEP.  Maybe they do studies on

         18  emissions, but that's not something that we do.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

         20  Proportion of driving in the Central Business

         21  Districts, I assume that you have some sort of a

         22  measurement on the volume of cars in the Central

         23  Business District, right?

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes.  The

         25  Screen-line Report which I know you are going to
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          2  read intently will show you the crossings --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay. Got

          4  it.

          5                 How about measurements of the walking

          6  and biking to the Central Business Districts?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: We do.

          8  I believe the bridge  -- as he said, we do collect

          9  bike data and we will be collecting pedestrian data.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: On street

         11  parking  --  I know this is one of your favorites,

         12  Commissioner.  Is that data on either the

         13  availability or turnover of on street parking, is

         14  that data that you collect?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BONAGURA: We do

         16  not collect that.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Curb

         18  space  --  we do have some data on curb space

         19  availability.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We collect

         21  data  -- Mike's saying it.  I know the Muni-meters

         22  that we put in is affording us a great deal of data,

         23  because, remember, people have to get these tickets

         24  and we have all this information now in these little

         25  computerized boxes.  So, with the advent of the
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          2  Muni-meters, we're getting more data.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Is that

          4  what you mean when you say curb space availability?

          5  That I can totally understand. The curb space

          6  availability, is that where the data is coming from?

          7  From the increased use of the Muni-meters?

          8                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

         10  Lastly, movement of commercial traffic, I guess, as

         11  distinct from the rest; do you break that out in any

         12  specific way?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I mean,

         14  we do have different sources of data on truck

         15  volumes.  I think it depends on what exactly you

         16  want to look at, but we do have some truck volume

         17  data.  That data through NYMTC on how goods

         18  generally are moved, whether by truck or rail or

         19  water, and as we talked about here before, most of

         20  the goods in the five boroughs move by truck.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So it

         22  sounds to me, just to summarize all of that, it

         23  sounds like there is from the DOT, there is data on

         24  the volume of cars, there is no data on exposure to

         25  roadway emissions --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Not from DOT.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Not from

          4  DOT. Right. Right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: But there may

          6  be other entities out there that have an enormous

          7  amount of data on this.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Correct.  I

          9  got you. That's actually a very important point I

         10  think.  There is data on cars in the Central

         11  Business Districts.  There is some data today on

         12  bike, but not yet on pedestrian, but that is

         13  something which is coming.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: That's

         15  coming.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Curb space

         17   -- there's an increased amount of data on curb

         18  space availability for the on-street parking, but

         19  not complete data on that.

         20                 Finally, on the commercial traffic

         21   --  some truck volume data.  Truck volume data you

         22  have, but other commercial you may not have.  Is

         23  that a fair summary of  --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yeah.  It

         25  also comes back to this issue that we have a number
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          2  of partners in the region who also collect data.  So

          3  we have a lot of data on trucks, for instance, from

          4  NYMTC. So it does become important not just to look

          5  at what we ourselves are collecting but the other

          6  sources of data that are out there.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  If I could

          8  just make a point, you talk about the availability

          9  of parking spaces.  A number of communities, and the

         10  Chairman knows this, are clamoring for more

         11  Muni-meters, and typically when we determine whether

         12  we are going to put Muni-meters in, what the traffic

         13  division does is that they go out there and they do

         14  a study.  Just what you said, how much of the curb

         15  side space is being used, how frequently are cars

         16  turning over, how much curb space is there.  So

         17  those are discreet studies that we have the data on,

         18  on particular neighborhoods, when neighborhoods

         19  request that we put Muni-meters in.

         20                 So, again, that's another source of

         21  data.  It may not be a huge report like this, but

         22  it's another source of data that we as an agency

         23  have.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  I

         25  think that's all I have.  Thank you very much,
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          2  Commissioner.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

          4  Member Garodnick.

          5                 A few follow-ups from Council Member

          6  Brewer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I will be

          8  quick as time is of the essence.  I know that

          9  Council Member Liu talked about cars coming from

         10  other parts of the City.  I had seen the same

         11  mention of that study.  What kind of similar studies

         12  that you do regarding cars coming into Manhattan are

         13  done in terms of those other communities?

         14                 You talked about Staten Island as an

         15  example, but are the same kinds of technology new

         16  entrants going to be used in other than the Central

         17  Business District?

         18                 Because, obviously, if we can think

         19  of indicators of comfort and convenience and

         20  attractiveness in those areas then that would

         21  perhaps cut down on what's coming into Manhattan.

         22                 In other words, the data that you

         23  collect for coming into Manhattan, there is

         24  certainly other business districts. You talked about

         25  Staten Island staying in Staten Island.  Obviously
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          2  Flushing, Downtown Brooklyn, et cetera, are all

          3  places where vehicles are coming in.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Again.

          5  There are a lot of different data sources that we

          6  are talking about.  Based on census data, and

          7  NYMTC's, what's called the Best Practices Model, we

          8  have commuting pattern data, not just in Staten

          9  Island, but throughout the five boroughs.

         10                 We also, as we had said earlier,

         11  collect volume data, not just coming into Manhattan,

         12  but coming into all the boroughs, and also over 50

         13  bridge crossings in all five boroughs.

         14                 We are also working with NYMTC to do

         15  more Central Business District data collection, not

         16  just in Manhattan, but at other business districts

         17  throughout the five boroughs, such as Downtown

         18  Flushing, such as Downtown Brooklyn.  So there are a

         19  number of data sources for outside of Manhattan.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: And I just

         21  want to point out one huge data source, which we

         22  have not tapped into which with the advent of EZ

         23  Pass, MTA Bridges and Tunnels and the Port

         24  Authority, have a vast amount of data that they can

         25  tap into, in terms of commuting patterns, times,
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          2  where cars are coming from.

          3                 So that's another enormous source of

          4  data that we at New York City DOT do not control,

          5  nor do we have access to.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Just finally,

          7  I know that the goal is 2030 according to the

          8  Sustainable Task Force.  That's pretty far along.

          9  So I hope that with the technology, and I also

         10  believe in some of this targeting, and I believe in

         11  199, that could be sooner.  I assume that, you know

         12  NYMTC has always been a very State-controlled

         13  organization as I understand it, and I know that

         14  there is a new regime, which is a good thing, but my

         15  question is you've got different aspects of data,

         16  obviously you've got environment, you've got MTA,

         17  you've got yourselves, you've got other NYMTC

         18  players, but even within the five boroughs, it does

         19  seem to me that 2030 is a long time coming and that

         20  we should be able to speed up the congestion

         21  reduction.  I guess that's what I hope that is what

         22  this bill does.  Thank you.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, if I

         24  could just add, we're not going to wait until 2030.

         25  I hope the Chairman and the Council Members
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          2  appreciate that.  We at DOT have done an enormous

          3  amount of work, whether it has to do with

          4  pedestrians, or peds, or bicyclists, or motorists,

          5  and I think the goal of the Sustainability Report is

          6  to really have a blueprint going forward, but that

          7  doesn't mean by any stretch of the imagination that

          8  we are just sort of sitting on our hands and that we

          9  continue to look for new opportunities to reduce

         10  congestion in the City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         12  Member Brewer.  And thank you, Commissioner.  You

         13  know we never suggest that DOT or any City agency is

         14  sitting on anybody's hands, but it is necessary to

         15  have these kinds of discussions, and so we look

         16  forward to working with you on that.

         17                 One final question that I have for

         18  you.  And we have been joined by Council Member Mike

         19  McMahon from Staten Island. Today, how do we define

         20  a congested street?

         21                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I am

         22  not going to give Mike Premeggia the mic because we

         23  won't be out of here for two hours, but we have a

         24  measure of level of service, and it goes from A to

         25  F.  It's a traffic engineering tool, and that's how
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          2  we define a level of service.

          3                 I think as Council Member Brewer

          4  knows, when we were talking about closing certain

          5  roadways in Central Park, we presented what we

          6  believed would be the level of service of the

          7  adjacent streets based on before and after data.

          8                 So, it's an engineering tool, a

          9  traffic engineering tool that's used, and that's how

         10  we define level of service.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So what are some of

         12  the basic criteria that go into whether a street

         13  gets an A or an F?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Do you really

         15  want me to put Mike Premeggia on this mic?  I'll be

         16  happy to, Councilman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: A brief description

         18  of it, because I think that also is one of the

         19  primary concerns that advocates have.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I hope no one

         21  is hungry.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think Mike has the

         23  wherewithal to be succinct.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I am not so

         25  sure about that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: This is Michael

          3  Premeggia  --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: I'm

          5  Michael Premeggia.  I'm the Deputy Commissioner for

          6  Traffic Operations within the Department.  The

          7  Commissioner was mentioning that there is a level of

          8  service is a measure of delay, and that ranges from

          9  A to F.  We rarely see F in New York, obviously

         10  that's a failure.  We rarely see A in New York

         11  except at the --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, what is an F?

         13  Because I think if you ask the average New Yorker

         14  they might have a different definition of what this

         15  entails.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: It is

         17  a series of delays probably excess of 90 to 120

         18  seconds.  I don't know the exact  --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  I'm sorry.

         20  Keep going. Keep going.  We are just talking.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: I

         22  don't have in front of me the exact seconds of delay

         23  that trigger each individual  --  but let's say as

         24  the delay increases, the delay for a vehicle

         25  proceeding through an intersection and that's what
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          2  we are really measuring.  So how long does it take a

          3  vehicle to get through an intersection, and if that

          4  level of delay is less than 30 seconds, it's a

          5  certain level; if it's more than 40, if it's less

          6  than 50 seconds, it's a certain level; if it's more

          7  than 120 seconds, it's a certain level.  Those

          8  levels are readily available and I can certainly

          9  send those to you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.  What do we

         11  do those ratings whether it be A or F?  Say a street

         12    --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: Well,

         14  let me give you a good example. Most engineers in

         15  the City  --  most engineers in the country design

         16  roadways for level service C, and so what they try

         17  to do is to make sure that under peak times that

         18  traffic demand will move at a level service C and so

         19  that the level of congestion will be modest.  In New

         20  York City  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is it a goal of DOT

         22  to move streets from --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: No,

         24  no.  Let me just finish.  In New York City, we don't

         25  design for level of service C because that's an
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          2  unreasonable goal, or target as I am hearing the

          3  word being used today.  It's an unreasonable goal.

          4  So we try to design for level of services higher

          5  than C, but not level of service E or F.  So,

          6  typically we are somewhere in the D range, which is

          7  a level of congestion that is longer than most

          8  communities in the United States try to design for.

          9  So that is what the level of service measures.  It

         10  measures levels of delay at an intersection.  So

         11  when you have a project, what you are looking at  --

         12  or a new development  --  what you are looking at is

         13  how many intersections will change where the level

         14  of service is projected to change and what that

         15  change will be, and are the ways to mitigate that

         16  individual level.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.  I think a lot

         18  of the discussion in the communities that have led

         19  up to this hearing actually have to do with that

         20  kind of measure itself, in terms of what goes into

         21  that measure, and what we do that measure.  It seems

         22  as if the only thing that goes into that measure is

         23  a count of vehicles regardless of how many people or

         24  how much quantity of goods is actually traversing

         25  that intersection.

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I might point

          3  out that an intersection, that is sort of near and

          4  dear to your heart  --  I think it goes through a

          5  portion of your district, I may be wrong, is Queens

          6  Boulevard and there was an example where Mike and I

          7  had many long, arduous discussions about what level

          8  of service we were going to sustain for the cars

          9  versus the pedestrians.  There we made a number of

         10  changes, I might add, we lowered the level because

         11  what we are saying is we had take into consideration

         12  the pedestrian.  So, that's just one example of

         13  where we clearly looked at the entire route and we

         14  looked at the entire different modes of

         15  transportation, and to take into account what we

         16  were giving whom and who was at risk.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  That goes to,

         18  I guess, the second part of my question.  The first

         19  part of my question is exactly what is being

         20  counted?  Let's take an example, say Lexington and

         21  23rd Street.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: What

         23  goes into the level of service analysis is the

         24  amount of traffic, and the type of traffic that goes

         25  through the intersection.  So it will measure
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          2  volume.  It will measure the types of vehicles, that

          3  would be buses and trucks and other types of

          4  vehicles in the traffic stream.  It will look at the

          5  amount of green time provided for the various

          6  movements.  It will look at the type of zone that

          7  you are in, if it's in a Central Business District

          8  or if it's outside a Central Business District.

          9  It'll take into account turning vehicles, left and

         10  right turns. It'll take into account pedestrian

         11  interference.  And so when a level of service

         12  calculation is done for an intersection, it takes

         13  into account all of that data that you are

         14  discussing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me get this

         16  straight.  We do count the number of vehicles that

         17  are traversing that intersection and you  --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA:   --

         19  And the number of pedestrians, and the number of

         20  buses, and the number of trucks, and the number of

         21  turning vehicles, and the number of vehicles

         22  crossing and the amount of green time provided in

         23  the signal and that all goes into the calculation

         24   --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Of whether it's an
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          2  A, B, C, D, E or F.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: For

          4  the level of service at that intersection.  Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  That's

          6  fine and I think our Committee staff will certainly

          7  have to take a closer look at exactly how that

          8  calculation is determined because perhaps wrongly

          9  it's out there that all we do is count the number of

         10  vehicles without differentiating between the types

         11  of vehicle.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: I make

         13  the point, as strongly as I did Council Member,

         14  because when we are talking about an intersection, a

         15  particular location, or several intersections for a

         16  particular project, you can collect all of that type

         17  of data. When you are talking about this  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I am asking you

         19  about that particular measure.  You just stated that

         20    --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA:  That

         22  particular inter  --  and that's a measure of

         23  intersection  --  that level of service is a measure

         24  of intersection mobility.  Much of the discussion

         25  today was discussions on a much broader nature of
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          2  entering into the borough or entering into the City.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Let's be more

          4  succinct here.  I'm asking what I thought was a

          5  pretty straightforward question.  You brought up the

          6  level of service, and I just want to make sure that

          7  we are in agreement here, or actually that the

          8  Committee understands, because we're not as expert

          9  at this as you are, not by any stretch of

         10  imagination.

         11                 The level of service, whether it be

         12  an A, B, C, D, E or F, does take into consideration

         13  not simply the number of vehicles traversing the

         14  intersection, but the type of vehicle.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So,

         17  presumably, an intersection gets a higher rating, if

         18  the volume is coming from buses, rather than

         19  individual cars that carry only one person.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So then how do you

         22  differentiate between a bus and one person  --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: A bus

         24  has a different characteristic than a vehicle and so

         25  in calculating the capacity, and calculating the
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          2  delays, they have different operating

          3  characteristics and that's accounted for in the

          4  formula.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  So

          6  that's something that we'll take a closer look at,

          7  because I don't think we'll get anywhere in this

          8  kind of setting.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: I

         10  don't think so.  I think you are right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: My final question,

         12  or perhaps it's a comment, is that there's a great

         13  deal of concern that the Department, in it's effort

         14  to move traffic along and decrease the traffic

         15  congestion, there is not enough, and I know that you

         16  have been looking at pedestrian movement, but the

         17  concern is that there is not enough emphasis on

         18  pedestrian movement.  When we talk about how

         19  pedestrian interference is factored into the level

         20  of service at an intersection, does that give us

         21  some kind of insight as to how pedestrian movement

         22  is being considered?

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I would

         24  sort of take issue with that.  I think one of the

         25  major initiatives that I've really spirited under my
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          2  tenure as Commissioner has to do with pedestrians.

          3                 You pointed out about Thru Streets.

          4  I think one of the great successes of the Thru

          5  Streets Initiative had to do with something called

          6  "split phasing," which basically takes time away

          7  from the movement of cars and gives additional time

          8  to pedestrians so they have the intersection to

          9  themselves to cross in a safe manner.

         10                 We have looked at a number of

         11  intersections.  I mentioned Queens Boulevard.  We

         12  have done some work in Brooklyn, as well as Staten

         13  Island.  I can go on and on and on about the

         14  boroughs that we have looked at various pedestrian

         15  initiatives, but we have spent a lot of time, and

         16  will continue to spend a lot of time, looking at

         17  movement of pedestrians.

         18                 Clearly, a pedestrian who comes into

         19  conflict with either a bus, a car or a truck is at

         20  risk and is going to be the loser.  So that's

         21  clearly something that we have spent a lot of time

         22  looking at and working on.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is there a tangible

         24  measure that has been developed to gauge the level

         25  of service for pedestrians?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Before I

          3  answer that question, this is a study that we put

          4  out, another one of our studies, called "Safe

          5  Streets New York City," and it looks at a number of

          6  safety improvements and if you go through this book

          7  and if your staff goes through this book, they will

          8  see that the majority of the initiatives in here are

          9  pedestrian related.  So that's an initiative that we

         10  have taken up.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We don't disagree

         12  that there have been many efforts on your part to

         13  make it safer for pedestrians. Presumably there is

         14  some kind of a measure that measures the performance

         15  of a street or an intersection with regard to

         16  pedestrian usage.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: There

         18  are similar levels of service for pedestrian traffic

         19   --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Such as?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: Again

         22  A, B, C or D  -- A through F. It measures the level

         23  of service of that on sidewalks, not necessarily

         24  through the intersection but on sidewalks.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Presumably there is
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          2  no interaction between vehicles and pedestrians on a

          3  sidewalk, but the problem is that  --

          4                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Presumably,

          5  you would hope so.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.  I mean,

          7  unfortunately, just a day before yesterday, we had a

          8  drunk driver go up onto the sidewalk and  --

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We had an

         10  accident in my neighborhood just last night with a

         11  school bus, and a car, and it went up on the

         12  sidewalk and took out a tree on Seventh Avenue.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, but Mr.

         14  Premeggia brings up that there -- are you saying

         15  that there is a different indicator, another level

         16  of service, that's different from the level of

         17  service that you were talking about before.  Before

         18  it seemed that you were talking about the level of

         19  service as measured for vehicular movement and now

         20  there is different level of service measurement for

         21  pedestrians?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA:

         23  Correct.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes.  Let me

         25  give you an example.  Another topic that we have
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          2  spent a number of hearings talking about here before

          3  your Committee having to do with bus stop shelters

          4  and the newsstands and street furniture.  We have a

          5  whole unit that looks at the level of pedestrian

          6  activity in a neighborhood as to whether another

          7  newsstand could be located there or any type of

          8  street furniture could be located there. We're

          9  embarking on our new Street Furniture Initiative.

         10  We want to put 300 more bus stop shelters up.  We

         11  got to look at the level of service, pedestrian

         12  level of service, on those streets to see if we are

         13  impeding it, or are we having no effect.  So that's

         14  another unit that works with Mike and looks at that

         15  on a daily basis as requests come in.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So say if we look at

         17  the intersection at 23rd Street and Lexington,

         18  Deputy Commissioner Premeggia, how do you balance

         19  the two measures, level of service for vehicles

         20  versus level of service for pedestrians?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA: When

         22  we talk about an intersection, we are talking about

         23  how the vehicles are moving through the

         24  intersection.  When we're talking about the sidewalk

         25  and how pedestrians are walking on the sidewalk how
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          2  much space is allocated for sidewalks on the street.

          3  You are looking at pedestrian level --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  I just want

          5  to make that point clear.  That the level of service

          6  that you are talking about for pedestrians is for

          7  sidewalk space, but does not actually address the

          8  intersection.  The problem there of course is that

          9  we get lots of complaints from residents who, mostly

         10  seniors, and we are living in an aging City.  We get

         11  these stories of seniors who literally have to take

         12  a taxi to cross the street. We do hear about this

         13   --

         14                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Oh please.

         15  They take a taxi to cross the street?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, unless these

         17  seniors are lying, I think there are seniors who

         18  take a taxi because they literally have to go around

         19  the block a couple of times to get across the

         20  street.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PREMEGGIA:

         22  Council Member, when you look at how pedestrians

         23  cross an intersection and how much time is provided

         24  for pedestrians to cross the intersection and

         25  whether that time needs to be exclusive or whether
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          2  in that time the pedestrians can cross while the

          3  through movement is continuing parallel to them.

          4  That means, of course, that turning vehicles are

          5  turning through them. You look at a number of

          6  factors, and if you, remember I said one of the

          7  factors that goes into how an intersection operates

          8  is the amount of green time provided for the vehicle

          9  movement at that intersection, as the Commissioner

         10  mentioned, split phasing, what split phasing does is

         11  take green time away from the through movement and

         12  gives it to the pedestrians.  There are different

         13  types of treatments like that Leading Pedestrians

         14  Intervals, what we call an LPI, Barnes Dances, all

         15  things that give additional time to pedestrians.

         16  What we do in Midtown every day from 11:30 to 2:30

         17  in the afternoon and take time away from the through

         18  movement and give it to the cross streets because

         19  that's when the pedestrians are crossing the major

         20  avenues, all of that are factors that go into how

         21  the level of service for the vehicles goes into

         22  because we reduce the amount of time available for

         23  the vehicle movements by giving it to the

         24  pedestrians.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It is necessary for
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          2  us to move on to other people who have important

          3  input into this process.  I do want to thank all of

          4  you for being here.  I will wrap it up by saying

          5  that we don't disagree that the Department of

          6  Transportation, under your leadership, Commissioner,

          7  has undertaken efforts to improve situations for

          8  both the vehicular traffic, as well as pedestrian

          9  traffic.  In all of this, we still haven't heard an

         10  answer to my basic question earlier, which is, is

         11  there a performance measure for pedestrians in this

         12  City  --  you have answered that there is a level of

         13  service assigned to sidewalk space, but a great deal

         14  of the concern is not limited to how wide the

         15  sidewalks are or how much space there is on

         16  sidewalks for pedestrians to walk on, but actually

         17  allowing pedestrians  -- balancing the need for

         18  pedestrians to move versus vehicles to move. The

         19  only place that that interaction takes place is in

         20  the intersection. It is not on the sidewalk and it's

         21  not in the middle of the street. So, I bring that up

         22  as an example of a measure that we, as a City, ought

         23  to start looking at, because that's the only way we

         24  can better manage this balance between, in this

         25  case, pedestrians and vehicles.  Without that kind
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          2  of measure, how can we manage that?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I don't want

          4  to get into an argument with you, but I think it

          5  would be disingenuous on my part for the public to

          6  be left with an impression that this is not a

          7  concern, or something that the agency is not working

          8  on day in and day out regarding pedestrian safety.

          9  Mike and his staff would be happy to sit down with

         10  the Council staff and go over the type of data we

         11  collect, the type of studies we go through, and to

         12  show the Council staff how much work we put into

         13  both moving traffic, but more importantly, the

         14  safety of other modes of transportation and that

         15  being pedestrians, as well.  So, I don't want to get

         16  into an argument with you here, but  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We certainly don't

         18  want to get into an argument, but I also want to

         19  emphasize that no where are we saying or implying

         20  that the Department of Transportation does not care

         21  about this issue or that the Department of

         22  Transportation does not work on this issue.  We have

         23  very clearly said the exact opposite, that your

         24  department, under your leadership, has undertaken

         25  many initiatives.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I think it's

          3  a matter of sharing  --  I think it's a matter of,

          4  again, like I said in my testimony, sharing the

          5  data, sharing the analysis gathering, sharing all

          6  that information and getting it into a form that

          7  would make the Council feel more comfortable.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Great.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         11                 We have our next panel consisting of

         12  Paul White of Transportation Alternatives, Teresa

         13  Toro of Tri-State Transportation Campaign, and Gene

         14  Russianoff of the Straphangers Campaign.  Please

         15  come up to the witness table.

         16                 And I'd also like to give a head's up

         17  to our next panel consisting of Peter Kostmayer from

         18  Citizens for NYC, Alexis Perrotta of the Regional

         19  Plan Association, and Bruce Schaller, Transportation

         20  Expert.

         21                 Thank you for joining us this

         22  morning.  I want to thank Paul and the

         23  Transportation Alternatives for really doing a lot

         24  of leg work on this issue, and please proceed.

         25                 MR. WHITE: Thank you Chairman Liu.
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          2  Good morning. My name is Paul Steely White and I am

          3  the Executive Director of Transportation

          4  Alternatives.  I am joined today, at my left, by

          5  Transportation Alternatives' lobbyist, Chad Marlow

          6  of The Public Advocacy Group, who will have a few

          7  brief comments following my testimony.

          8                 Commissioner Weinshall has stated,

          9  very clearly, that her agency's goal is to shift New

         10  Yorkers out of their cars and on to alternative

         11  modes of travel, but the fact is that the DOT has

         12  neither a target, nor a timetable, for achieving

         13  this goal.  As any management consultant worth their

         14  fee will tell you, a goal without a target or

         15  timetable is not a goal at all, but just a hopeful

         16  wish.  That's exactly the point of this legislation.

         17    The DOT needs targets and timetables and new data

         18  collection to inform these to make their goal of

         19  traffic relief a reality.

         20                 New York needs traffic relief.  New

         21  York City surface transportation network is not

         22  working properly.  To put it more bluntly, New York

         23  City streets are failing.  Those who doubt this fact

         24  look no further than the recent Partnership for NYC

         25  study that found $13 billion dollars in lost jobs
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          2  and revenue each year as a result of our congested

          3  streets.  Much of the traffic you see is simply

          4  trolling for parking.  A recent Schaller Consulting

          5  study found that one- fourth of traffic on a typical

          6  Manhattan street was simply cruising around the

          7  block looking for a place to park.  In 2006, 311 New

          8  Yorkers were killed and thousands more were injured

          9  in motor vehicle crashes, most of them pedestrians.

         10  The vast majority of our streets are without basic,

         11  low- cost safety measures to protect our City's slow

         12  walking senior citizens.  Finally, the vast majority

         13  of New York City streets are bereft of basic, low

         14  cost provisions for buses and bicyclists, the most

         15  efficient users of our city's increasingly limited

         16  street space.

         17                 There is one problem that underlies

         18  all of these failures.  It is that our city's

         19  Department of Transportation still, in the year

         20  2007, is measuring performance in terms of vehicular

         21  level of service, not in terms of the extent to

         22  which it is shifting travel to more efficient modes.

         23    The DOT currently measures how well it is doing by

         24  measuring things like the number of potholes it

         25  fills, street signals it repairs and bridges it
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          2  fixes.  These certainly have an effect on traffic,

          3  but they are insufficient to address our city's

          4  traffic problem.

          5                 Much has been said recently about

          6  London's congestion pricing scheme, and how

          7  successful that in their surface transportation

          8  improvements have been.  This bill, incidentally,

          9  does not address congestion pricing, but it is

         10  interesting to note that at the heart of these

         11  changes, and other changes that have made London a

         12  more desirable place to live and do business, is the

         13  fact that London has changed the way the measure

         14  street performance in a very fundamental way.  They

         15  have moved away from vehicular level of service, and

         16  their over arching metric is now modal shift: To

         17  what extent is the City moving people out of their

         18  cars and onto more efficient modes of travel.  This

         19  is precisely what Intro 199 is about, measuring our

         20  street performance in smarter ways so that we can

         21  reduce traffic citywide, minimize driving wherever

         22  possible and maximize the use of surface transit,

         23  walking and bicycling.

         24                 Introduction 199 is a very good bill

         25  that we enthusiastically support.  There are,
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          2  however, a few clarifications that should be

          3  expressly written in to the bill instead of being

          4  merely implied as they are not.  First, the bill

          5  should require DOT to annually measure travel as it

          6  proceeds in and out of the following four types of

          7  areas.  First, the entire City of New York. Second,

          8  each of the city's five boroughs individually,

          9  again, annually.  Third, the city's worst traffic

         10  corridors like Canal Street and Flatbush Avenue.

         11  And fourth, the city's worst choke points like where

         12  Atlantic, Flatbush and 4th Avenues intersect in

         13  Brooklyn, or on specific intersections on Highland

         14  Boulevard for example.  On a similar note, Intro 199

         15  should require the DOT to utilize the City Council's

         16  Members' unique, comprehensive understanding of

         17  their district's local traffic problems by

         18  consulting with them before determining which

         19  traffic corridors to study each year.  Also, in

         20  addition to Intro 199's mandated modal shifting

         21  targets, the bill should include targets for

         22  reducing traffic fatalities and injuries, and

         23  targets for increasing curbside vacancy, not just

         24  parking availability as the bill currently states.

         25  Finally, the bill should specifically require the
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          2  DOT to devise targets for reducing driving and

          3  increasing the use of alternative modes in the

          4  increasingly congested commercial districts of

          5  Brooklyn, Queens, the Bronx and Staten Island.

          6                 This morning, Commissioner Weinshall

          7  shared with us many welcome initiatives that will

          8  certainly improve surface transit, walking and

          9  bicycling.  But without modern performance targets

         10  and the annual data collection needed to measure

         11  progress towards achieving them, the DOT will not

         12  know how these improvements are impacting local

         13  traffic in your districts and overall travel in our

         14  city.  It is critical to note that most of the

         15  information sought in this bill is already collected

         16  an analyzed by NYMTC, of which DOT is a member, in

         17  its' annual Manhattan Hub Bound Report.  But I think

         18  as all of now know we have long passed the point

         19  where Manhattan is the only traffic problem in New

         20  York City.  Traffic is now a citywide problem, not

         21  one limited to Manhattan below 60th Street.  Each of

         22  the city's 51 council member districts deserves the

         23  same information required to address its traffic and

         24  transportation problems as those in central and

         25  southern Manhattan.
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          2                 As for any cost concerns that might

          3  be raised about this bill, Transportation

          4  Alternatives is confident in our estimate that the

          5  new data collection required to meet the mandates of

          6  Intro 199 will cost the City less than $300,000 per

          7  year, a small price to pay for developing the

          8  information and goals our city needs to bring our

          9  surface transportation system into the 21st century.

         10    The cost of implementing this bill is so

         11  affordable because Intro 199 will produce its data

         12  through statistical sampling that is extrapolated

         13  with great precision into traffic figures covering

         14  the entire year.  It is the same way polls are taken

         15  for elections. Into 199 no more requires DOT to send

         16  employees to count traffic, then again, a political

         17  poll requires calling every single voter in your

         18  district.

         19                 Let me conclude on this one note.

         20  Into 199 is not a bill that is designed to solve all

         21  of our city's traffic and transportation problems.

         22  Rather, the bill is designed to mandate DOT collect

         23  a comprehensive set of traffic data and then, in a

         24  manner it deems appropriate, to share that data with

         25  the Mayor, the City Council and the public- at-
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          2  large so that we can all effectively redress our

          3  city's traffic and transportation issues.  The theme

          4  of this bill is information is power, and I urge

          5  this committee to join this bill's 23 current co-

          6  sponsors in empowering yourselves by adopting

          7  Introduction 199.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Chad you

          9  want to  --

         10                 MR. MARLOW: Yes Mr. Chairman.  Thank

         11  you, and I want to thank you for your consistent

         12  leadership in taking on probably the most

         13  challenging issue that faces our city,

         14  unfortunately, which is traffic.  I'll try to make a

         15  few brief points, but ones that I think are valuable

         16  for the people in attendance and the Committee to

         17  hear.

         18                 I have spent a lot of time obviously

         19  over the last couple of months visiting Council

         20  members, and their staff and talking about this

         21  bill.  One theme that is consistently come up has

         22  been the difficulty in what I would call proving

         23  your case to the Department of Transportation.  You

         24  may say that you have a particular street that's

         25  crowded or a crossing that's dangerous in your
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          2  district and you would like the DOT to do something

          3  about it, and what is almost always the response is,

          4  I'm sorry but we don't have the data to back that

          5  up.  Although it's helpful today, maybe interesting

          6  today is a better word, that when they come before

          7  this Committee, they find it easy to claim that they

          8  have a great deal of data.  I think that every

          9  single one of you and your staff members realizes

         10  that when you need data to support problems that

         11  exist in your district, it's somehow very difficult

         12  to come by. That is one of the most important things

         13  that this will address. It will enable you to prove

         14  up the transportation problems in each of your

         15  districts so you can get them resolved immediately.

         16                 Some of the things that were

         17  mentioned by DOT I think warrant a little bit

         18  further examination.  My good, long time friend,

         19  Council Member Garodnick actually touched on some of

         20  these such as saying that they stated that the City

         21  Council already requires reporting and, therefore,

         22  this bill redundant.  They stated in their

         23  testimony, the MMR already has the data.  I think

         24  both of those things under what could be deemed a

         25  cross- examination have come out to not be entirely
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          2  accurate.  They are also being told that DOT is

          3  collecting the data.  Although, again, under

          4  questioning of what data, it seemed that the data

          5  was incomplete or even unknown, and I think in a

          6  final analysis it's fair to say that the data being

          7  collected is a patchwork of data that is not

          8  comprehensive and reliable enough.  Again, that

          9  being one of the important goals of Intro 199.

         10                 Another thing that I think is very

         11  interesting is their claim that 199 is premature.  I

         12  would hardly think that an effort to gather the data

         13  effectively, to take on the traffic problems in this

         14  City is premature.  This to me almost suggests that

         15  traffic is a recent phenomenon in this City, and

         16  perhaps they should be given some time to examine

         17  whether it's worth a taking on before the City

         18  Council acts.  To the contrary, I think that the

         19  City Council has looked to them for a very long time

         20  to develop and share data so we can deal with our

         21  traffic problems and that if anything I think that

         22  this bill should be call late, not premature.

         23                 You have also been asked  --  they

         24  have also testified that in terms of technology that

         25  there is technology coming at some point  --  I
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          2  don't know what several years necessarily means  --

          3  that will make it easier to for them to study the

          4  traffic problems in this City.  Although, one of the

          5  Commissioner's deputies also referred to the

          6  technology as simple. So, again, that's a little bit

          7  inconsistent, and I think rereading the transcript

          8  will bear there out.  I think that it's important if

          9  there in fact is technology coming that will make

         10  this process cheaper and easier, I think that is

         11  wonderful news, but it does not absolve us of the

         12  responsibility particularly when, as my colleague

         13  Paul White testified, it can be done for $300,000 a

         14  year, to go out and gather this data now.  If it

         15  becomes cheaper and easier to do so in several

         16  years, that is a wonderful development, but I cannot

         17  understand how DOT has turned that wonderful

         18  opportunity into an excuse for not doing it now.

         19                 Just a few more final comments.  They

         20  referred to the way that they gather data for the

         21  Manhattan Central Business District in NYMTC, and I

         22  think Councilwoman Brewer was very correct in noting

         23  that, that is not a City agency.  That is not

         24  something to which the City has direct control over

         25  and that we should be able to data on it.  I know
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          2  that Mr. Chairman you asked them specifically well

          3  what about the data coming in to Manhattan from

          4  Queens.  Can you tell me exactly how much data is

          5  coming in, and the response was well there is a lot

          6  of traffic coming from everywhere.  I think really

          7  that is, unfortunately, the sort of evasive response

          8  that the City Council has gotten for years from DOT.

          9    That was not an answer to your question, and I'm

         10  sure you were aware of that as well.  That is an

         11  attempt to evade your question.  I think that a

         12  properly functioning DOT that will empower you and

         13  your colleagues to address traffic problems would

         14  either respond with an exact response or an I'll

         15  have that information to you by the end of the day

         16  Mr. Chairman.  That was most definitely not their

         17  response.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Chad we have to  --

         19                 MR. MARLOW: Okay.  Well let me just

         20  conclude by thanking you for your time, and by just

         21  saying that I think, like Paul said, that this bill

         22  is about information, and that I think that it is

         23  critically important that information be gathered

         24  that will allow each of you to deal with the

         25  problems of traffic and transportation your
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          2  constituents ask of you.  I think that 23 of your

          3  colleagues agree that it's time, and I hope this

          4  Committee continues to move ahead on this bill.

          5  Thank you so much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Ms.

          7  Toro.

          8                 MS. TORO: Thank you Mr. Chairman for

          9  conducting this meeting.  I am Teresa Toro from the

         10  Tri-State Transportation Campaign, and I am here to

         11  urge you to pass Intro 199 to change the way New

         12  York City measures success, not only by traffic

         13  flow, but by reducing congestion and implementing

         14  alternate modes of transportation such as biking and

         15  mass transit.  Intro 199 will help measure such

         16  movement, and is a crucial first step toward finding

         17  a better transportation policy, one that seeks to

         18  move people more efficiently, not just cars.

         19                 On December 12, 2006, Mayor Bloomberg

         20  announced that he's willing to be judged on travel

         21  times in the city as part of Plan NYC 2030,

         22  expressing concern about the city's congestions

         23  levels.  He said adding to the capacity of our

         24  regional mass transit system, so that travel times

         25  stay the same, or get better was a primary goal for
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          2  the program necessary to stop our economy from

          3  grinding to a halt because of congestion.  Mayor

          4  Bloomberg was right to note that congestion relief

          5  will only happen if the city increases its

          6  investment in mass transit.  The ridership boom on

          7  the L train is an excellent example of development

          8  running far ahead of transit planning, something we

          9  should take care not to repeat.

         10                 Census data on NYC travel times shows

         11  that the challenge of meeting the Mayor's goal is a

         12  big one.  Commute times in New York dropped over

         13  three percent from 1980 to 1990, almost surely a

         14  result of recovery of the subway system from its low

         15  point via massive public investment.  But commute

         16  times rose thereafter, by nearly seven percent in

         17  the decade to 2000, as gains from transit

         18  reconstruction flattened and ridership and street

         19  traffic boomed.  Other census data indicated New

         20  York commute times have failed to improve

         21  significantly since 2000, and are likely to worsen

         22  further.

         23                 Travel times won't improve until the

         24  city develops the tools to examine where and why

         25  congestion occurs.  If Mayor Bloomberg is serious
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          2  about his goal, the Council and Administration will

          3  have to make some tough choices.  It will be hard,

          4  for example, to achieve good travel times in the

          5  face of population growth without some way to unclog

          6  roads and devote more street space to efficient

          7  vehicles like buses and bicycles and essential

          8  traffic such as business deliveries.

          9                 Last, we should ensure that the term

         10  travel time applies to all modes of travel,

         11  including cars, bikes, walking, subway and bus

         12  transit.  The data should be made available by

         13  borough as well as citywide, and be most detailed in

         14  its examination of major transit corridors.  Mayor

         15  Bloomberg should jump at this chance to clearly

         16  define how the city is using its streets and

         17  sidewalks, how those uses impact communities, and

         18  how New Yorkers can benefit from encouraging less

         19  harmful uses. Success should be measured not by

         20  traffic speeds or number of potholes measured, but

         21  by quality of life and safety across all modes of

         22  travel.

         23                 Knowledge is power.  By broadening

         24  the scope of data with the goal of reducing traffic

         25  congestion, we are arming ourselves with the kind of
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          2  information that can improve the lives of all New

          3  Yorkers.  We can plan how to move goods and people

          4  through communities without harming them.  I urge

          5  the Council to also ask DOT to report these findings

          6  on a yearly basis for public review and input.

          7                 The Council can make Intro 199 a

          8  reality, and I urge you to pass this bill.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRMAN LIU: Thank you.  Gene.

         11                 MR. RUSSIANOFF: Hello, Mr. Chairman.

         12  I'm Gene Russianoff with the Straphangers Campaign,

         13  and you have a copy of my written testimony in

         14  support of Intro 199, and I will try to be brief.

         15  Teresa mentioned this plan NYC 2030, an initiative

         16  the Mayor started, a good one.  He predicts that

         17  there will be a million more people in New York by

         18  2030, and the city cannot build any significant

         19  number of new streets.  We must plan to use the ones

         20  we have in a healthier, safer and more efficient

         21  way.  I went to the website of the City DOT and I

         22  got a copy of the Mayor's Management Report in

         23  preparing for this hearing.  There are some good

         24  goals in there, reducing congestion and enhancing

         25  mobility, but the measures of it are things like
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          2  parking enforcement, intersection control, street

          3  signage, traffic signalization, street lighting and

          4  parking facilities maintenance.  These things have

          5  their place, but the broader goal which is reducing

          6  traffic in this city can be no where found in any of

          7  those documents.  You check the Citywide

          8  Accountability Program, My Neighborhood Statistics,

          9  and I just mentioned the Mayor's Management Report,

         10  they are all very crabbed measures.  It just simply

         11  not the focus or priority of the City DOT, and they

         12  are looking at operable street parking meters,

         13  construction permits issues, and summons issued.

         14                 You may reduce congestion by such

         15  laudable programs as better timed street signals,

         16  but if you reduce traffic or household exposure to

         17  emissions, you can really change the quality of life

         18  of New Yorkers, and it's for these reasons that we

         19  support Intro 199.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  I really

         21  want to thank you and all of the other advocates and

         22  we do want to hear from everybody even though I know

         23  you have already spent a great deal of time at this

         24  hearing.  Let me ask you, I mean I think  -- I am

         25  not really sure why the DOT seems to get on the
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          2  defensive sometimes. It's not our intent to put them

          3  on the defensive, and I think they have a good point

          4  that some of the things that we are collectively

          5  asking for are not within the purview of the DOT,

          6  for example, reducing emissions  -- should that be a

          7  purview within the DOT?

          8                 MR. RUSSIANOFF: It should be a goal

          9  of the City, and it should be a goal that's tied to

         10  traffic.  It should not be compartmentalized into

         11  well air quality is DEP's concern, and reducing

         12  congestion is City DOT's concern.  So, I think if

         13  the City were sincerely committed to what I believe

         14  is the right answer here which is to reduce traffic

         15  in the City, it would have measures that tell you

         16  so.  Just for example, I would love it if the MMR

         17  had a statistic on number of parking permits issued

         18  by the City.  We really don't know that, and it's a

         19  strategy that the City pursues for several reasons,

         20  but it's a strategy that encourages automobile

         21  traffic in Manhattan.  So, that would be, I think, a

         22  useful measure, and they just don't do it.

         23                 MR. MARLOW: And if I could just add,

         24  the bill says that DOT would have to gather and

         25  report that data.  It doesn't say how, and they talk
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          2  a lot about the City Council working collectively

          3  with DOT.  Well DOT can call up any other City

          4  agency and say I am required to report this data.

          5  Can you let me know what it is?  So it doesn't

          6  necessarily have to be DOT who gathers it.  DOT just

          7  has to report it.

          8                 MR. WHITE: Also DOT, as a member of

          9  NYMTC, you know all the data that the MTA collects,

         10  that the State DOT collects, all of that is

         11  certainly available to them.  So there is nothing

         12  stopping the DOT from incorporating those other

         13  agencies data collection into their own data

         14  gathering and metrics.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And a substantial

         16  part of the discussion was also on what efforts does

         17  the DOT undertake in order to get people to take

         18  mass transit.  Is it fair for us to expect that the

         19  DOT would undertake any such efforts?

         20                 MR. RUSSIANOFF: They are now.  The

         21  Bus Rapid Transit is a study and initiative is a

         22  joint City DOT, MTA project.  The City owns the

         23  streets, the right of ways, the MTA runs the buses.

         24  Cooperation is essential, and the City, in my

         25  opinion, should be contributing substantial support
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          2  because they benefit by having city residents move

          3  faster, and the economy move faster.  The MTA is

          4  participating, obviously, because, among other

          5  things, they save labor costs by having the runs be

          6  shorter.  So, I don't think that having a crabbed,

          7  small role for DOT in improving transit is correct.

          8  I think they can do more.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  My final

         10  question, and then we have questions from some of

         11  the members here, is it  --  I don't think that DOT

         12  have ever said that reducing traffic is a goal, and

         13  I don't necessarily think that reducing traffic is

         14  the goal either. It's reducing unnecessary

         15  congestion that leads to a stagnation in the economy

         16  and also a deterring quality of life.  So, I mean

         17  what's the goal for some of your organizations.  Is

         18  it to reduce traffic or is it to reduce traffic

         19  congestion?  I think those two are very different

         20  concepts.

         21                 MR. WHITE: At Transportation

         22  Alternatives, we are very focused on reducing

         23  driving, recognizing that most traffic congestion,

         24  as the partnerships recent report demonstrated, is a

         25  result of excess driving.  It's happening.  Many
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          2  trips that could be taken by transit  -- twenty two

          3  percent of driving trips citywide are one mile or

          4  less in length, clearly a lot of room to switch to

          5  walking and perhaps bicycling there.  So, we've

          6  defined the problem as, as Commissioner Weinshall

          7  has in fact, is that the name of the game is getting

          8  people out of their cars and onto alternative modes,

          9  and transportation engineers call this a modal

         10  shift, and it's the kind of goal that cities like

         11  London, Paris, and now Chicago and even San

         12  Francisco are putting at the top of their

         13  performance target list to say everything we do is

         14  related to this top goal, and here's the percentage

         15  of trips that we want to shift by say 2009, and

         16  that's what it's about.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So, it is

         18  clear that based on your discussions with the

         19  Department that there is a very clear objective on

         20  the part of the DOT to get people to get out of

         21  their cars and into mass transit.

         22                 MR. WHITE: I would characterize it as

         23  a vague goal. I mean it's sometimes during the

         24  transit strike or during the holiday traffic season

         25  you will see Mayor Bloomberg, God bless him, riding
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          2  the subway and encouraging New Yorkers to leave

          3  their cars at home and take transit.  That's

          4  terrific.  We heard Commissioner Weinshall this

          5  morning say she'd like to see people move out of

          6  their cars, and then at the microcosm level we have

          7  all these very myopic indicators of street lights

          8  and potholes, but there is nothing in between really

          9  getting the city moving towards that vaguely

         10  articulated goal of getting people out of their

         11  cars.

         12                 MS. TORO: I'd also like to add that

         13  in her testimony, Commissioner Weinshall mentioned

         14  the difference between pre and post 9/11 traffic

         15  levels in the city.  I think she was mostly

         16  referring to Manhattan, and after 9/11 traffic

         17  dropped significantly.  She failed to mention that

         18  was in great part due to the HOV restrictions placed

         19  on entrances into Manhattan.  So, commuters were

         20  forced to carpool.  You know DOT can, in fact, be

         21  very aggressive about, not just reducing congestion,

         22  but traffic. They can reduce the number of vehicles

         23  entering any point in the city if they choose to do

         24  so.

         25                 MR. MARLOW: And Mr. Chairman I think
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          2  the important thing, although examining all these

          3  issues is critical, to remember about this bill is

          4  that the bill, first and foremost, is about data

          5  collection.  Once you have that, you can determine

          6  if your goal is to reduce traffic or to reduce

          7  congestion.  All those issues cannot even really be

          8  discussed or determined until the data is there. So,

          9  I think it's very important to remember that,

         10  although all of these issues ultimately are

         11  important, the first thing is giving you the

         12  information to even make those decisions.

         13                 MR. RUSSIANOFF: If I could just

         14  briefly add, I think you ask a tough and very fair

         15  question.  You could, to some extent, reduce

         16  congestion without reducing traffic, but I think for

         17  our groups we believe the significant policy for the

         18  city to make the streets less congested and the city

         19  more livable is, in fact, to reduce traffic.  I

         20  think it's fair to say that's where we come out, and

         21  that is not currently a goal of DOT, and I think a

         22  review of their MMR report, as said before, is a

         23  very narrow series of outputs rather than a way to

         24  achieve some of the goals that they have there and

         25  some of the goals that they do not.
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          2                 MR. WHITE: Also to just conclude my

          3  remarks, just by focusing on travel delay for

          4  motorists by focusing on vehicular level of service

          5   --  assume for a moment the Mike Premeggia could

          6  wave a wand and give every street in New York City

          7  level of service A for cars tomorrow.  What would

          8  happen?  Well a lot of people would stop taking the

          9  bus, they'd stop taking the subway, they'd stop

         10  riding their bike, they'd hop in their cars, and

         11  this is the very phenomenon of induced demand that

         12  has created this problem. That by focusing on

         13  maximizing traffic flow to the exclusion of

         14  everything else, the city has actually encouraged a

         15  lot more driving over the years, and this new

         16  paradigm is about actually, again, focusing on the

         17  modal shift rather than just making it easier to

         18  drive.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, but to be fair

         20  to the DOT, they did testify, and Mr. Premeggia did

         21  testify, that it's not simply counting the number of

         22  vehicles passing that intersection to determine the

         23  level of service.  In fact, they do consider the

         24  type of vehicle entering those intersections, and

         25  presumably treating buses different from cars would
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          2  lead to a better rating, and so just because all the

          3  intersections go to A that doesn't mean necessarily

          4  that it's easier to drive a car.  It may also

          5  indicate that more people are taking buses.

          6                 MR. WHITE: In the final analysis, in

          7  the reports I've seen generated by the DOT, the

          8  bottom line is how fast are cars moving, and when

          9  they are considering whether or not to put in a bus

         10  lane, or widen a sidewalk, or put in a bike lane,

         11  the fundamental trade off that they look at is how

         12  is this going to impact cars and vehicular traffic

         13  and they actually very seldom make the distinction

         14  between a SUV and a bus which is why you so often

         15  see a SUV blocking a bus on so many of our city bus

         16  routes.

         17                 MR. MARLOW:  And Mr. Chairman, and I

         18  honestly don't know how this experiment would turn

         19  out, but I think it's worth while, I think you and

         20  your colleagues should, or someone from your staff,

         21  this afternoon, call up DOT and ask them for those

         22  statistics on a particular intersection that's

         23  troublesome in your district.  I question whether

         24  they'll be able to produce them in a timely manner

         25  if at all.  So, I think that would be an experiment
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          2  worth holding because it's very contrary to what

          3  other Council Members have told me when they ask for

          4  that outside of a Committee room.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Great.  We have

          6  questions from Council Member Brewer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you all

          8  very much. During the testimony, and the back and

          9  forth, I guess I was a little surprised because one

         10  of the gaps seemed to be from DOT's perspective is

         11  that we will be working much more closely with MTA

         12  now because we have somebody whom I've know for

         13  awhile.  I think our goal of course is to gather

         14  this data, information gathering, and then use it to

         15  set targets to get people out of cars and onto

         16  public transportation or to walk or to bicycle.

         17  That's the goal, at least from my perspective.  The

         18  question then is obviously the BRT, and there have

         19  been other coordinated efforts, but is that what

         20  NYMTC is supposed to do, but wouldn't one also think

         21  that it would be an administrative goal to sort of

         22  tell the MTA that we are going to set these goals so

         23  that we do find more accessible, comfortable

         24  transportation, particularly in this case in the

         25  five boroughs, so that people will get out of their
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          2  cars.  This notion of the MTA hasn't done it,

          3  therefore we can't mandate them to do it.  I guess I

          4  was a little surprised by that and I am just

          5  wondering if you think that there should be a more

          6  central planning goal.  Is that what NYMTC is

          7  supposed to do?  That's my question. I was just

          8  surprised that we haven't been able to get much

          9  coordination now support so therefore we haven't

         10  been able to plan to get people out of their cars.

         11                 MR. RUSSIANOFF: You know, we're in a

         12  new era.  We used to say a minute spent with NYMTC

         13  is a minute wasted, and the agency had a very

         14  limited, very technical focus for it.  From my

         15  perspective, what I'm hoping for, going along with

         16  Commissioner Weinshall is better working

         17  relationship between the MTA, NYC Transit and DOT.

         18  It's been very aggravating.  In this BRT study, the

         19  MTA produces statistics which we use in our Pokey

         20  Awards about how slowly the buses move through the

         21  city.  It costs them a lot of money, it costs them

         22  labor money with longer runs, and the city, they're

         23  doing better now, but they just did not see

         24  themselves responsible for the speed of these buses.

         25    They weren't paying the costs of labor, and they
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          2  weren't taking the complaining phone calls from

          3  constituents who use the buses, and I think what's

          4  needed is a sense that the City is responsible for

          5  the quality of bus service in the City because it

          6  owns the rights away.  So, at least on that

          7  particular initiative, I would not look to NYMTC, I

          8  would look to the MTA, and DOT to really continue

          9  what they have been doing what they have doing

         10  pretty well the last year and a half, two years, and

         11  I'm hoping it doesn't get mired.  I'll give you one

         12  quick story, about five years ago someone in the

         13  Transit Authority told me that they had gotten the

         14  City to agree to just paint the lanes. Remember how

         15  they used to be yellow, the curbs, the bus stops,

         16  and they were going to put a spotted line down there

         17  to send a message that you are not supposed to drive

         18  in here.  Five years went by, nothing ever happened,

         19  and the main reason was is that the MTA was willing

         20  to spend the initial money themselves to mark the

         21  right- of way that they don't own, but DOT wanted a

         22  guarantee that they would never have to pay to

         23  maintain them.  So, that's the level of the kinds of

         24  dysfunctionality of relationships between the two

         25  agencies.  I have got to hope that it's going to get
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          2  better now, and if it does then it'll serve your

          3  constituents well.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

          7  Member Brewer and questions from Council Member

          8  Garodnick.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Actually

         10  really more of a comment than anything.  I just

         11  wanted to note that I came to the hearing today with

         12  an intent to listen to DOT, which I did, and also of

         13  course to hear what you all had to say.  As somebody

         14  who represents a district which is for all intense

         15  and purposes a parking lot for much of the work

         16  week, I appreciate the purposes of this bill, and

         17  recognize that it's really an issue of setting the

         18  goals and the timetables which do not presently

         19  exist.  I don't regard the cost issue as one which I

         20  consider significant in light of the Partnership for

         21  New York City study which said that traffic and

         22  congestion in New York City is costing us $13

         23  billion a year, and we need to be aggressive, I

         24  think, in finding a way to manage the problem.  In

         25  order to manage it, as we all know, you need to be
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          2  able to measure it.  That was the philosophy which

          3  led to some of the effective policing strategies and

          4  I think that we can address these issues the same

          5  way.  So, I just wanted to let you all know that I

          6  am going to sign on as a co- sponsor, and I hope

          7  that we have some relief.  We need to certainly be

          8  able to take a look very carefully at this data, and

          9  make determinations as to how we're really going to,

         10  on a large scale, address this problem.  So, thank

         11  you.

         12                 MR. MARLOW: Councilman, if I could

         13  just quickly, I just wanted to thank you, and note

         14  for those in attendance that we are now pleased to

         15  have a majority of the members of this Committee as

         16  co- sponsors of the bill.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Thank

         18  you Council Member Garodnick, and I want to thank

         19  the panel for being with us today.  Thank you.

         20                 Our next panel please come up.  We

         21  have Alexis Perrotta from the Regional Plan

         22  Association, Peter Kostmayer from Citizens for NYC,

         23  and Lauren George, please come up as well, also from

         24  Citizens for NYC, and Bruce Schaller.  Following

         25  this will be a panel consisting of Ray Irrera, the
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          2  President of the Queens Chamber of Commerce.

          3                 Mr. Kostmayer.  Could you push the

          4  button?

          5                 MR. KOSTMAYER: Fascinated to hear the

          6  questions between Council Member Garodnick and the

          7  Commissioner and her staff.  His questions seemed to

          8  be very clear, very succinct.  I am not sure what

          9  the answers were.  This is an enormously complex

         10  area in which I'm not knowledgeable or

         11  sophisticated, but it seems to me the answer should

         12  be more forthcoming and clear, and articulated in a

         13  much more effective way.  As you and as others have

         14  said, we need to have targets.  I think much of the

         15  data is already being collected, but we really do

         16  need to have the targets.  You asked a very I think

         17  fair, and a very tough question, is it congestion or

         18  just driving, and in the case of our own group, it's

         19  really both. We are concerned about driving.  We are

         20  concerned about the ability of people to walk and

         21  bike, especially in Manhattan, the quality of life.

         22  So, we are admittedly for pricing congestion.  We

         23  think that's the way to go, and we think that this

         24  is a step in the right direction, and we appreciate

         25  your hard work, and your aggressive stance, and
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          2  happy to be here in support of the legislation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          4                 MS. PEROTTA: Good afternoon.  My name

          5  is Alexis Perotta.  I am here today representing

          6  Regional Plan Association, which is a member of the

          7  Citywide Coalition for Traffic Relief, and I would

          8  happy to address any of the regional implications of

          9  the bill, but instead of reading my testimony, I'll

         10  be quite brief.

         11                 I was going to talk about 421- a,

         12  just to mix it up a little bit.  421- a was a policy

         13  put into place in the seventies, thirty years ago

         14  when the City thought that any growth was good

         15  growth.  A lot has changed, and I think that the way

         16  that the City Council addressed 421- a and changed

         17  it, and did the hard work of updating that bill for

         18  a new vibrant city was exactly the kind of thing

         19  that we need to do for our transportation policy,

         20  and Intro 199 is the equivalent, in my mind, for

         21  transportation as the update for 421- a was for

         22  affordable housing.

         23                 I just want to say that RPA is very

         24  much in favor of Intro 199, and thank you for your

         25  leadership on it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  That's

          3  it from the Regional Plan Association?  We will take

          4  a careful look at your --

          5                 MS. PERROTTA: That's pretty much it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Terrific.

          7  Thank you. Always a pleasure to have the RPA here.

          8  Mr. Schaller.

          9                 MR. SCHALLER: Good morning. I am

         10  Bruce Schaller, Principal of Schaller Consulting and

         11  the author of two recent reports that I just wanted

         12  to start by calling to your attention, one is the

         13  report that serves as the basis for the news article

         14  a couple of weeks ago that you discussed earlier,

         15  and the second is a report released by

         16  Transportation Alternatives earlier this week,

         17  Traffic Information in New York City, What We Need

         18  to Know.  I have additional copies if you need them.

         19                 I just want to hit a couple of points

         20  in the testimony that I submitted.  One, it's very

         21  clear, and there is widespread agreement, that New

         22  York City needs to concentrate on shifting people

         23  from the car to transit, and the question is how to

         24  do that, and what information do you need in that

         25  process.  Second is, if you look internationally, if
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          2  you look nationally, as the Transportation Research

          3  Board held their annual meetings earlier this week,

          4  there are very sophisticated ways of assessing

          5  traffic flow and how well traffic is moving and how

          6  many, not just vehicles it's moving, but how many

          7  individual people.  Here in New York City perhaps

          8  the most sophisticated data collection on that

          9  scored by the MTA which has very detailed

         10  information on transit ridership, speeds, capacity

         11  and the like throughout its system, and it uses that

         12  to operate its system.

         13                 New York City and the New York City

         14  DOT, however, lack even the most rudimentary

         15  information about the use of the streets.  I think

         16  there has been a good deal of clouding in the

         17  discussion earlier this morning on this issue, and I

         18  would just like to clarify a couple of things.  The

         19  only information that is collected on an annual

         20  basis by City DOT are traffic counts, and it's a

         21  count of all traffic.  It doesn't distinguish what's

         22  a car, what's a bus, what's a truck et cetera.  The

         23  type of information that was discussed in terms of

         24  the LOS indicators is collected on an individual

         25  special study basis often paid for by a developer
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          2  who is doing an EIS for a particular area  --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You said LS.  Is

          4  that level of service?

          5                 MR. SCHALLER: Yes. LOS, which Mr.

          6  Premeggia and you had the discussion about before,

          7  which includes vehicle classifications, and a number

          8  of other very specific, intersection specific pieces

          9  of information.  That information is not collected

         10  on a regular basis at the set- up locations by the

         11  DOT.  It's collected as a special study type of a

         12  thing.  The information from the transit vehicle

         13  that's collected is not collected so as to know how

         14  many people are travelling through the intersection.

         15    It's collected simply to be able to gauge speeds

         16  in the traffic model that they run using that

         17  information.  So I just wanted to clarify so you

         18  understand that the information that was being

         19  addressed earlier is not looking at people movement.

         20    It's still looking at vehicle movement.  So when

         21  you look around the city and the information that is

         22  collected, you see basically traffic volumes coming

         23  into the Manhattan CBD and then crossing the borough

         24  or county screen- lines.  There are no traffic

         25  volumes for CBD's in the other boroughs.  There is
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          2  no traffic volumes on congested corridors in the

          3  city.  There is no vehicle classification

          4  information, no traffic speeds, no data on how much

          5  traffic varies from day to day and no mode share

          6  information.  This is the all the type of

          7  information that Intro 199 calls for, and it is the

          8  essential information that's needed for the city to

          9  have a road map in shifting travel from the auto

         10  onto transit.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Ms.

         12  George did you have testimony.  Okay.  Great.  Thank

         13  you.  So, I mean the DOT, especially the Deputy

         14  Commissioner Premeggia, sat there and told us that

         15  they were collecting this information.  He got into

         16  a great deal of specifics about what goes into the

         17  level of service ratings for these intersections,

         18  and what you are saying is that they do it for a

         19  selected number of intersections, and that's

         20  generally in response to some kind of construction

         21  plan, but they don't do it on a regular basis.

         22                 MR. SCHALLER: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Well that's

         24  very interesting and that's  --  I want to thank you

         25  for responding to our invitation to come to this
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          2  hearing, and for sitting through hours of this so

          3  far.  Thank you very much.

          4                 MR. SCHALLER: Yes. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Mr. Ray

          6  Irrera from the Queens Chamber of Commerce.

          7                 Our next panel will consist of Hope

          8  Cohen from the Center for Rethinking Development,

          9  Matthew Roth from the Citywide Coalition for Traffic

         10  Relief, and Gorman Reilly from CIVITAS.

         11                 Mr. Irrera you look like Mr. Egan.

         12                 MR. EGAN: I am Mr. Egan, Bill Egan,

         13  Executive Vice President of the Queens Chamber of

         14  Commerce, and I am filling in for our President, Ray

         15  Irrera who, unfortunately, had to leave.  He had

         16  another appointment and he sends his apologies.

         17                 Good morning Chairman Liu and members

         18  of the Transportation Committee, and thank you for

         19  the opportunity to testify today.  My name is Bill

         20  Egan, and I am here on behalf of the Queens Chamber

         21  of Commerce, the largest business advocacy

         22  organization in the borough of Queens.

         23                 I am here today to speak about Intro

         24  199, a local law in relation to modifying Department

         25  of Transportation performance targets and indicators
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          2  towards the goal of reducing traffic congestion

          3  citywide.

          4                 The Queens Chamber of Commerce is

          5  supportive of the goal of reducing traffic

          6  congestion, though as we have consistently said our

          7  support of this goal is conditioned upon taking

          8  measures that will not harm the city's economy, its

          9  businesses, its commuters from Brooklyn, Queens and

         10  the other boroughs, the Bronx, Staten Island or

         11  Manhattan outside of the Central Business District.

         12                 Our fear is that the language in this

         13  legislation is too vague.  Terms such as performance

         14  indicators and full capacity are defined in a manner

         15  where it will be hard to predict or account for the

         16  standards that will be used to measure them.  And,

         17  we are certainly wary of any plan that specifically

         18  targets central business districts for different

         19  treatment, particularly since access to

         20  transportation is not easy in many parts of Queens.

         21  Often times residents and businesses making

         22  deliveries have no other option than to drive to

         23  their destination and will be severely harmed by a

         24  plan to discourage their driving into certain areas.

         25                 As we have said in the past, before
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          2  this Committee, we are extremely supportive of

          3  measures to improve mass transit, such as increasing

          4  express bus service from the borough of Queens into

          5  Manhattan, an initiative of Chairman Liu's that we

          6  strongly support.

          7                 We remain steadfast in our position

          8  that these sorts of changes should be made first,

          9  prior to any plans to impact those who have no

         10  choice but to drive to their destinations.  That

         11  being said, we certainly support measures such as

         12  increasing the proportion of people walking, biking,

         13  and using mass transit, as long as the changes are

         14  brought through incentives such as improvements in

         15  mass transit.  We remain mindful that when speaking

         16  of transportation infrastructure, the mass transit

         17  infrastructure is currently at capacity.  Increased

         18  ridership cannot be encouraged until the capacity

         19  exists to handle it.

         20                 The Chamber is supportive of efforts

         21  to reduce congestion, lessen commute time, and

         22  encourage mass transit.  We are willing to work with

         23  this Committee on solutions that will truly help

         24  improve our transportation system and provide

         25  positive incentives for the reduction of traffic
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          2  congestion.  Thank you for your time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  We have

          4  a question from Council Member Brewer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: First of all,

          6  thank you very much for your comments, and obviously

          7  Council Member Liu has done a great job supporting

          8  some of the changes in bus service which would be

          9  welcome, I'm sure.  Are there other suggestions in

         10  terms of accessible, comfortable mass transit that

         11  Queens residents, and certainly the businesses,

         12  would welcome?

         13                 MR. EGAN: Well improving the mass

         14  transit, the bus being the first and the most

         15  obvious, other things like enforcement. I think we

         16  can do better with enforcement, and I think that

         17  would help too.  A lot of the measures were

         18  discussed earlier this morning with the DOT.  I

         19  think those things in particular we can start to

         20  focus on first before we ever consider some more

         21  drastic measures like congestion pricing.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MR. EGAN: You're welcome.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Mr. Egan.
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          2  I do want to remind everybody that the bill really

          3  looks at collecting data and does not envision any

          4  changes based on that data because in many cases we

          5  don't have that data.  So, that's all the bill does.

          6    It collects data, or it seeks to collect data.

          7                 MR. EGAN: In that, we are in total

          8  agreement with you.  Improving data collection and

          9  setting targets, absolutely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  I want

         11  to thank you and the Queens Chamber of Commerce for

         12  consistently looking at these positions of citywide

         13  importance.

         14                 MR. EGAN: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Next we have a panel

         16  consisting of Hope Cohen, Matthew Roth, and Gormon

         17  Reilly.  Please come up to the table, and then a

         18  heads up to the next panel consisting of Carol

         19  Rosenfeld from Environmental Defense, Sheila

         20  Feinberg for New Yorkers for Parks, and Sarah

         21  Gallagher from Upper Green Side.

         22                 Ms. Cohen, please proceed when you

         23  are ready.

         24                 MS. COHEN: Thank you Mr. Chairman,

         25  Council Members, and especially Council Member
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          2  Brewer who invited me to testify today on Intro 199.

          3    My name is Hope Cohen.  I am the Deputy Director

          4  of the Center for Rethinking Development at the

          5  Manhattan Institute.

          6                 New York has too much traffic.  The

          7  Partnership study that's been mentioned a number of

          8  times this morning and afternoon blames excess

          9  traffic for at least $5 billion dollars worth of

         10  lost time and productivity, $2 billion dollars in

         11  wasted fuel and vehicle operating costs, at least

         12  $4.6 billion dollars in lost business revenue and

         13  increased operating costs, and as many as 50,000

         14  lost jobs in the region.  Reports by environmental

         15  and transportation groups highlight the effects of

         16  pollution on everything from stress to asthma rates

         17  to global warming.

         18                 And that's now.  If the streets are

         19  already choking on traffic, how can they possibly

         20  absorb the cars and trucks associated with the

         21  addition of one million people in the next

         22  generation?

         23                 Clearly, the City needs to take

         24  action to relieve traffic congestion.  The problem

         25  is serious enough to have sparked public discussion
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          2  of congestion fees and other pricing solutions. In

          3  fact, CRD contributed to this discussion with our

          4  study, also by the way authored by Bruce Schaller

          5  who was just here, Battling Traffic: What New

          6  Yorkers Think About Road Pricing.  The report

          7  demonstrated that New Yorkers would be open to

          8  pricing solutions, but only if carefully targeted to

          9  specific traffic hotspots, places and times, and

         10  combined with a mix of other remedies.

         11                 Enforcement of existing traffic

         12  regulations is vital.  Various operational

         13  adjustments can be very effective. More and better

         14  public transportation, of course.  And revoking the

         15  parking privileges that provide some commuters a

         16  market incentive to drive to work in the city.

         17                 But the fundamental philosophical

         18  shift needed first in for New York City's Department

         19  of Transportation to broaden its' perspective from

         20  facilitating automobile traffic to facilitating

         21  mobility throughout the city for all residents,

         22  workers, and visitors.  And Intro 199 is a first

         23  step toward accomplishing that.

         24                 It is a basic fact that people and

         25  organizations apply their effort, resources and
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          2  everything else to those areas that are watched,

          3  measured, and rewarded.  And quite simply, the

          4  rewards for DOT management have traditionally been

          5  on automotive throughput.  Intro 199 requires that

          6  DOT be measured on reducing roadway emission and

          7  increasing the proportion of waling, biking and the

          8  use of mass transit, as well as increasing the

          9  efficient movement of traffic.  Once DOT understands

         10  that its' responsibilities are broader than creating

         11  good streets for cars and that its' performance on

         12  the broader issues will be watched and reported on,

         13  it will apply its' resources to those broader

         14  issues. It's a beginning.

         15                 Those are my prepared remarks.  I do

         16  want to throw in one other thing having heard DOT's

         17  testimony, and that has to do with the question of

         18  it being premature to ask for this data as they have

         19  a major IT initiative underway.  I am going to put

         20  on a hat from a previous career of mine and tell you

         21  a little bit about IT initiatives.  You don't do

         22  them and then figure out what you are going to do

         23  with them.  If you think that you are going to need

         24  something, the entire process has to be integrated,

         25  and if there is data needed, the time to do that is
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          2  now, and to plan the IT project around the

          3  collection of the data that is identified now as

          4  something that's desirable.  Not saying okay we are

          5  going to this magic IT initiative and then

          6  everything will fit into later.  It's telling you

          7  right now that that project will be long in coming

          8  and over budget.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Mr.

         10  Roth.

         11                 MR. ROTH: Hi.  My name is Matthew

         12  Roth and I will be presenting testimony in favor of

         13  Intro 199 on behalf of the New York City Coalition

         14  for Traffic Relief which is 136 organizations, at

         15  present, representing every borough, majority in

         16  Queens and Brooklyn, as Paul stated earlier.

         17                 For far too long, the residents and

         18  business of the Bronx, Brooklyn, Manhattan, Queens

         19  and Staten Island have suffered under New York's

         20  nightmare traffic and its congestion, noise, danger

         21  and pollution.

         22                 For our children, and for our health,

         23  productivity and quality of life, we need relief.

         24  This is not an impossible task.  Today there are

         25  modern and effective solutions to reduce traffic and
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          2  lessen its impact on our daily lives.

          3                 We, the 136 community, civic,

          4  advocacy, and business organizations that constitute

          5  the New York City Traffic Relief Coalition, urge the

          6  New York City Council to support Intro 199, the

          7  Traffic Information and Relief Bill, as the first

          8  step toward adopting these modern solutions to

          9  reduce traffic, improve our quality of life, promote

         10  our health, and improve street performance.

         11                 On November 14, 2006, the Traffic

         12  Relief Coalition gathered on the steps of City Hall

         13  and called on the Mayor, the City Council, and all

         14  agencies responsible for the management of our

         15  streets to embrace the following five solutions as

         16  part of a comprehensive traffic relief plan to

         17  reduce citywide traffic volumes by fifteen percent

         18  by 2009.  First, wider and more protected rights-

         19  of- way for transit meaning more express buses,

         20  walking and bicycling, parking reform, traffic

         21  calming on our neighborhood streets, reduction of

         22  truck impacts citywide, and a feasibility study of

         23  congestion pricing in commercial districts.

         24                 The New York City Traffic Relief

         25  Coalition embraces Intro 199 as the first step
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          2  toward achieving this fundamental reduction in

          3  traffic volumes by 2009, and urges the passage of

          4  this bill not only to improve our quality of life,

          5  our health, and our communities, but to manage New

          6  York City's anticipated one million new residents by

          7  2030.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          9    Mr. Gormon.

         10                 MR. REILLY: Gormon Reilly.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Reilly.  I'm

         12  sorry.

         13                 MR. REILLY: I'm President of CIVITAS.

         14    We are a community organization, volunteers, on

         15  the east side of Manhattan, including the Upper East

         16  Side, and East Harlem.  We are concerned with

         17  quality of life issues including zoning,

         18  transportation and streetscape.  We rest on the

         19  testimony of my predecessors.  There is nothing more

         20  I can say to that.  I just wanted to make three

         21  points very briefly.  First on the East Side of

         22  Manhattan we are beyond the state of a challenge in

         23  traffic congestion.  At different times, days of the

         24  week, or locations it is a present crisis.  So, it

         25  has to be dealt with now, not down the road.
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          2  Secondly, this legislature proclaims the intention

          3  and the goal, the policy of the Council, and we hope

          4  the City, deal with the number one quality of life

          5  problem in the City and that is traffic congestion.

          6  It gives the Council and it gives the City targets,

          7  timetables and measures to systematically meet those

          8  goals and to report back to this Council Committee

          9  on a annual basis, at the very least I would hope.

         10  Third, this has got to be more than an effort for

         11  DOT to present this data.  It has to be a, probably

         12  a citywide effort in terms of the administration,

         13  but for example, certainly one of the major problems

         14  in traffic congestion are the many trucks that are

         15  taking up two lanes of traffic as they loan and

         16  unload its storage, maybe for hours at a time.

         17  Those needs have to be met, but we will begin to get

         18  measures, and begin to get data as to the impact,

         19  and we can then get that business community thinking

         20  together with the City as to how to meet that

         21  problem. Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         23  to this panel. Thank you.

         24                 We now have Carol Rosenfeld from

         25  Environmental Defense, Sheila Feinberg from New
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          2  Yorkers for Parks, and Sarah Gallagher from Upper

          3  Green Side.

          4                 Please come up to the table.  We have

          5  another hearing that is about to commence in these

          6  chambers.  I know that many people are now here for

          7  the Education Committee hearing.  So, please have a

          8  seat.  We are almost done with this hearing of the

          9  Transportation Committee.

         10                 Following this panel, heads up to the

         11  next people to testify, Kathleen Treat, Hilary

         12  Kitasei, Christine Berthet, Marc Ameruso, and Blair

         13  Skipper.  Please proceed.

         14                 MS. GALLAGHER:  I am Sarah Gallagher

         15  and I'm from the Upper Green Side.  We are an

         16  environmental group on the Upper East Side of

         17  Manhattan, and I am going to bridge my remarks in

         18  consideration of time, but of interest I think would

         19  be the survey that we recently conducted on the East

         20  Side of local residents and their attitudes towards

         21  traffic.  We found traffic jams and back ups were

         22  reported to be a problem for sixty eight percent of

         23  our respondents.  Seventy seven percent of residents

         24  reported being bothered by noise from automobiles

         25  while shopping in the neighborhood, and at a
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          2  tactical level, sixty eight percent would prefer far

          3  more truck loading zones to prevent trucks from

          4  double parking.  At a strategic level, over sixty

          5  percent would simply favor reducing the number of

          6  automobiles.

          7                 Uniformly, throughout this survey, we

          8  found people stressed, annoyed, imposed upon by

          9  traffic.  Our hope is, and we do support Intro 199

         10  to do on a much more grand and profound scale the

         11  development of information to address these needs.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         14                 MS. ROSENFELD: Hi.  My name is Carol

         15  Rosenfeld and I am a Research Fellow at

         16  Environmental Defense.  Environment Defense strongly

         17  supports Intro 199.  New York needs to seriously

         18  address congestion because the problem is only going

         19  to get worse. Many other cities have made impressive

         20  gains in reducing their congestion.  In London, for

         21  example, traffic congestion has been reduced by

         22  thirty percent.  The Norwegian cities of Oslo,

         23  Bergen and Trondheim have reduced their congestion

         24  by six to ten percent, and Singapore has reduced its

         25  congestion by fifty three percent.

                                                            129

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 These results have all been

          3  accomplished using congestion pricing which we

          4  recognize has been a controversial issue in New York

          5  City, but we support congestion pricing because it

          6  represents really the only tool that can achieve

          7  such deep cuts in congestion.  It would cut traffic

          8  across all of the boroughs and create new revenues

          9  to finance transit improvements.  These other cities

         10  have been cutting congestion, but in meantime

         11  traffic is expected to increase in Manhattan by

         12  twenty percent by 2027.  As several other people

         13  have mentioned, a recent study just came out that

         14  says that traffic costs New York City $13 billion

         15  dollars every year.

         16                 Not only that, but New York City's

         17  air quality, and New Yorker's health are suffering

         18  because of our failure to do something.  New York's

         19  air quality is among the worst in the nation and all

         20  five boroughs fail to meet basic public health

         21  standards for ozone and fine particulate matter.  In

         22  fact, air pollution from vehicular traffic has been

         23  linked to heart attacks, reduced lung function,

         24  bronchitis and asthma attacks, and one in every

         25  eight New Yorkers has been diagnosed with asthma at
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          2  some point in his or her life.

          3                 Compelling new science shows that

          4  living and working near heavy traffic can also

          5  increase health risks.  Studies show that living

          6  within 500 feet of major roads can aggravate asthma

          7  and increase hospitalizations.

          8                 Other cities have recognized the

          9  important health benefits and pollution reduction

         10  that comes from reducing traffic. London for example

         11  has had its particulate emissions decline by fifteen

         12  percent, nitrogen oxide emissions have fallen by

         13  thirteen percent, and fuel consumption and carbon

         14  dioxide emissions have dropped by twenty percent.

         15                 Here in New York City, every

         16  transportation project should be evaluated on the

         17  basis of performance indicators such as congestion

         18  and pollution reduction.  The transportation sector

         19  is the fastest growing source of greenhouse gases in

         20  New York State. It is a clear target of opportunity

         21  for reducing this city's carbon footprint.

         22                 We, therefore, support this bill.

         23  When we look at performance indicators like

         24  pollution and congestion reduction, we're not asking

         25  how many potholes the DOT has filled this year.
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          2  We're asking how has the DOT improved the efficiency

          3  of our transportation system, and what have they

          4  done for health and quality of life of all New York

          5  residents.  This bill is the beginning, and not the

          6  end of that conversation.  Thanks very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

          8  for your important testimony.  We now have our final

          9  panel of witnesses. Please come up to the table,

         10  Kathleen Treat, Hilary Kitasei, Christine Berthet,

         11  Marc Ameruso and D. Blair- Skipper.  This is our

         12  final panel for the Transportation Committee after

         13  which we will immediately commence with the hearing

         14  of the City Council's Committee on Education,

         15  chaired by Council Member Robert Jackson.

         16                 I want to thank the final panel for

         17  being with us all morning, and so far into the

         18  afternoon, but I would also advise you that we want

         19  witty testimony, and brevity is the soul of wit.

         20  Please proceed.

         21                 MS. BERTHET: Thank you so much

         22  Chairman Liu.  I am Christine Berthet, the

         23  co-founder of Clinton Hell's Kitchen Pedestrian

         24  Safety and co-chair of the Transportation Committee

         25  of Community Board Four.
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          2                 First points which have not been

          3  raised enough is the need of transparency and

          4  information at a very local level.  We have tried

          5  very many times in our neighborhood to get

          6  information about safety, and get information about

          7  accidents on our  -- and we had to do a full Freedom

          8  of Information Act.  It took us one year to get the

          9  information.  It took us five days to collect

         10  information, and then we started to learn that we

         11  had 500 accidents and injuries on  --  but it

         12  shouldn't take one year and five days to get that

         13  information.  It should be business as usual.  So,

         14  local information is very important because traffic

         15  is really a local issue as much as a general issue.

         16                 The second thing is the data.  The

         17  data is there to answer to questions, and what we

         18  have today is there is a lot of data which doesn't

         19  know what question they are answering (sic). For

         20  example, there is a lot of data  -- you asked the

         21  question earlier and there are answers to what you

         22  asked.  For example, today you can see that there is

         23  an increase of volume on streets coming to Manhattan

         24  which don't have a toll where there is a decrease in

         25  volume on those streets which have a toll.  You have
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          2  a large increase in volume from New Jersey when

          3  there is a decrease from the other boroughs of New

          4  York.  So, it's really important to look at all the

          5  data.  That data is available from NYMTC, but you

          6  need to know what you are asking, and, therefore,

          7  what we want with this bill is that the City Council

          8  ask the question, not the DOT. The DOT is there to

          9  answer, and I would recommend that the City Council

         10  keeps the authority on what questions are being

         11  asked as representative of people.

         12                 The third point, as you raised that

         13  question are we asking for traffic reduction or

         14  traffic congestion reduction, and I think we're

         15  asking for neither.  What we are asking is for

         16  improvement in street efficiency.  The street is a

         17  public resource. It should be servicing the most,

         18  and not the few, and it should be prioritized as

         19  what is the best usage on that street.  For example,

         20  EMS response time, in our neighborhood we have lost

         21  people because EMS couldn't go through on the

         22  street.  The trucks cannot use the street.  We have

         23  private cars instead of  --  so the question here is

         24  how is the DOT managing the street efficiency.

         25                 Final point which was not raised
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          2  before is I have not heard of including New Jersey

          3  as well as the Port Authority into all those

          4  metrics, and without that we are really ignoring

          5  probably half of the traffic generated in New York

          6  City. So I would encourage you to include those

          7  measures and agencies in the collection and the

          8  management of the streets.  Thank you so much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         10    We kind of went out of order so why doesn't the

         11  next person proceed.

         12                 MS. TREAT: I am Kathleen Treat, Chair

         13  of the Hell's Kitchen Neighborhood Association.  I

         14  would like to reiterate what Christine said that 9th

         15  Avenue is our main street, and 24/7 we are

         16  gridlocked with Lincoln Tunnel commuters.  Our

         17  ambulances can't get through.  Our fire engines

         18  can't get through, and this is the second time I

         19  have appeared in front of this Committee and I'm a

         20  little concerned that there is not a representative

         21  from the Port Authority because basically the Port

         22  Authority rules our neighborhood.

         23                 The other question is why doesn't the

         24  DOT have access to EZ Pass data, and we would like

         25  to see that incorporated. We think that would be a
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          2  great help to data collecting, and we think the

          3  Intro 199 is the most responsive to the public's

          4  needs. It's great to hear about ferry boats reducing

          5  traffic congestion. I'd like to hear more about

          6  light rail, but there is a real disconnect between

          7  the DOT's efforts to control traffic flow and

          8  pedestrians.  Commissioner Weinshall mentioned

          9  pedestrians three times in her testimony, not once

         10  did she mention people in wheelchairs.  311 traffic

         11  deaths in all our boroughs is just not acceptable.

         12  Thank you very much Chairman Liu and thank you Gale

         13  Brewer for this Intro 199.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         15    See chivalry is not dead.  Please proceed.

         16                 MS. KITASEI: Thank you.  I'm Hilary

         17  Kitasei and I'm chair of the Henry Hudson Parkway

         18  Task Force.  To abbreviate my remarks, the parkways

         19  are one of the most tragic casualties of the failure

         20  of New York City to manage traffic.  There are so

         21  easy to widen and straighten.  You just take all

         22  that nice easy park land that's there.  These scenic

         23  corridors, which were designed to be shared by

         24  motorists, pedestrians and bicycles, are being

         25  transformed project by project into expressways  The
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          2  transportation bill under consideration today is,

          3  therefore, a welcome contribution to the effort to

          4  manage traffic and to make decisions based on

          5  accurate knowledge.

          6                 I would like to give you one example

          7  of the way that has worked in the past.  Our

          8  assumptions about transportation preferences are

          9  often wrong and we plow ahead with projects and

         10  transportation policy based on erroneous

         11  assumptions.  For example, it was only the

         12  acrimonious battle over Westway, the proposed

         13  interstate that would have replaced the West Side

         14  Highway, that forced a careful study of who actually

         15  used that route and why, not just motorists, also

         16  pedestrians in the area, and the surprising finding

         17  was that much of traffic was not used to bypass

         18  Manhattan, but for local access.  The result was the

         19  reclassification of the road as an urban boulevard,

         20  flanked by a major waterfront park with a greenway,

         21  that is now the most heavily used in the entire

         22  system. In fact, the popularity of that greenway

         23  suggests that a future reevaluation of how space in

         24  the corridor is shared may be in order.  When demand

         25  on the greenway exceeds that on the traffic lanes it
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          2  would certainly be rational to give up one those

          3  traffic lanes for the greenway.

          4                 The beauty of the Traffic Relief Bill

          5  is its recognition that transportation policy should

          6  guide us to a goal that reflects our agreed values,

          7  not reflect it.  The goal of providing the most

          8  people the greatest mobility means not reflexively

          9  widening and straightening roads to allow more cars

         10  at higher speeds, but to consider all possible

         11  modes, and the knowledge that 9A is heavily used by

         12  local residents for rapid movement up and down

         13  Manhattan suggests that rapid transit in the

         14  corridor like light rail or buses could provide more

         15  mobility than a lane of automobile traffic does now.

         16    Waterborne transportation also brings more

         17  mobility to this corridor.

         18                 I'd like to say that our support does

         19  come with one warning.  Council Members should not

         20  be misled into thinking that allowing trucks on the

         21  parkway would reduce their impact on local streets

         22  because if we've learned anything about

         23  transportation in the last half century, it is that

         24  expanding capacity does not reduce congestion.  It

         25  increases capacity which increases congestion.  We
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          2  know that allowing trucks on parkways will drive

          3  modifications of these unique corridors that will

          4  only reduce their desirability and usability as

          5  anything other than highways.  This would be the

          6  poorest use of these corridors which have such

          7  unique potential for these other modes.  So the

          8  Henry Hudson Parkway Taskforce endorses the Traffic

          9  Relief and Information Bill with enthusiastic

         10  optimism and we look forward to contributing to the

         11  creative planning that we really expect to be a

         12  result of this effort.  Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Mr.

         14  Ameruso.

         15                 MR. AMERUSO: I really just want to

         16  say last but not least that's why I let her go

         17  first.  I'm kidding.  My name is Marc Ameruso.  I am

         18  a Tribeca resident and for identification purposes I

         19  am also a member of Community Board One.  I am also

         20  a member of the Canal Area Transportation Study

         21  which is run by NYMTC which is an ongoing study in

         22  the Canal Street corridor.

         23                 This came before our quality of life

         24  committee.  We didn't really have time to put

         25  anything official  -- we don't have anything
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          2  official yet, but we are commenting on this ongoing

          3  process, but a kind of consensus was that we thought

          4  that there need to be more specifics within the data

          5  collection, and by your questions and comments, I

          6  think you recognize that.  One of my personal

          7  concerns is that you hear some of the transportation

          8  groups come in and they say well let's get rid of

          9  all private cars as if that's going to solve

         10  everything.  And I think you recognize, you asked

         11  that question, if you have more private cars, reduce

         12  them so you can have more buses.  So, the question

         13  is, and this was also addressed by you, in the

         14  ratings is the type of vehicles.  Now say you have a

         15  bus, or you have a truck, or you have a car, now how

         16  is that car specifically categorized.  Is it a

         17  private car?  Is it one of the black towncars?  Is

         18  it a bus?  Is it a taxi?  My personal experience has

         19  been that ninety percent of the time you see

         20  gridlock at an intersection, it's a bus, truck, car

         21  or taxi.  It's usually not a private vehicle.  So

         22  just saying eliminating them is going to solve the

         23  problem.  I think it is simple minded thinking. So

         24  some of the things I'd like to see added to the

         25  bill, which I do support, is to have a more specific
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          2  definition of those types of vehicles and what they

          3  are.  Another thing that I would like to see added

          4  to the bill is, and this is a big problem down here

          5  in Lower Manhattan, private vehicles with city

          6  agency or other agency placards that take up

          7  parking.  On my way here, I counted thirty placard

          8  private vehicles parked at parking meters.  That

          9  also is a problem because it reduces -- it hurts

         10  small businesses, someone wants to come in park for

         11  a half hour to purchase something.  The other thing

         12  you mentioned is pedestrian interference.  That's

         13  hardly ever mentioned.  Pedestrians are always the

         14  victims.  They never get blamed for interfering with

         15  traffic flow.  I am horrified everyday driving

         16  seeing a mother with a baby carriage sticking out in

         17  the street.  What are these people thinking and that

         18  little bit causes a chain reaction down the way to

         19  reduce traffic flow. Another issue came up was

         20  congestion pricing which is also --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You probably have to

         22  wrap up pretty soon.

         23                 MR. AMERUSO: Okay. I'll be less than

         24  a minute.  It's an issue of fairness, maybe you want

         25  to call it consumer congestion pricing, but if
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          2  you're say a resident of Manhattan, and you're

          3  driving a vehicle, why should you be burdened for

          4  paying a toll as opposed to someone who is not.  The

          5  same thing with also HOV lanes. Back when they had

          6  HOV restrictions, I was working nights.  I had to

          7  come home into Manhattan, and they wouldn't let me

          8  into the city when I'm coming to my home.  So,

          9  whenever you have these across the board rules there

         10  are always consequences that need to be recognized

         11  and tweaked so that not everyone is burdened by

         12  them. Thank you for your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         14    I want to thank the panel.  Our very last witness.

         15    Again, please keep your comments succinct.  Thank

         16  you.

         17                 MS. BLAIR- SKIPPER: Thank you for

         18  having me today. I'm really ill prepared, but I did

         19  really want to make this meeting today because

         20  personally I listened to everyone hear.  I didn't

         21  hear anyone, or maybe just one person, speak about

         22  the emergency responders.  That's where my heart

         23  lies.  I have noticed how difficult it is for them

         24  to maneuver through traffic, how motorists do not

         25  respect their sirens, or don't know which way
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          2  they're coming.  I am in favor of the 199 Intro that

          3  was introduced today, and I would hope that we, as a

          4  city, would really put in place, what's coming in

          5  New York City 2030, that we would really  -- I'm

          6  just so nervous.  I'm so sorry  -- that we would

          7  really put in place something for them to be more

          8  safer.  Okay.  I appreciate it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Ms. Blair-

         10  Skipper, and that's an excellent point that you made

         11  about the impact that traffic congestion has on the

         12  emergency responders.  Thank you.

         13                 Let me note for the record that the

         14  New Yorkers for Parks has submitted written

         15  testimony in favor of Intro 199, as has the

         16  Sustainable South Bronx Organization, Majora Carter

         17  submitting written testimony also in favor of Intro

         18  199.

         19

         20  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         21  SHEELAH FEINBERG

         22  NEW YORKERS FOR PARKS

         23

         24                 Good morning.  My name is Sheelah

         25  Feinberg and I am Director of Government and
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          2  community Relations at New Yorkers for Parks (NY4P)-

          3  the citywide parks advocacy organization working to

          4  bring greener, safer, and cleaner parks to every New

          5  York City neighborhood.

          6                 We are here today to support Into

          7  199, the Traffic Information and Relief Bill.  We

          8  support transparency and improved performance

          9  measurements in all aspects of the City government.

         10  More rigorous collection of traffic data and

         11  enhanced DOT performance outcomes will allow council

         12  members to have an analysis of traffic patterns in

         13  their district.  As any constituent will tell you,

         14  there are too many cars endangering the safety of

         15  pedestrians in the city.  Council members need to be

         16  armed with the correct data to make sound policy

         17  decisions that will increase the quality of life in

         18  their districts.

         19                 As park advocates, we believe this

         20  bill will not only encourage walking and biking in

         21  the city but also will improve the safety of

         22  pedestrians as they walk to and from public parks.

         23  Last summer, NY4P advocated, along with

         24  Transportation Alternatives, for a car- free summer

         25  in Prospect and Central Parks. A reduction in the
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          2  hours that cars are allowed in our parks leads to

          3  improved safety for park users.  In addition, many

          4  city residents have difficulty crossing the street

          5  to their parks because of vehicular traffic.  We

          6  believe that our city government should actively

          7  encourage biking and walking to improve quality of

          8  life in New York City through the passage of this

          9  bill.  New Yorkers for Parks supports measures that

         10  will make New York City safer, so that we can enjoy

         11  all aspects of the city.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: There will be no

         14  further witnesses. The hearing of the City Council's

         15  Committee on Transportation is adjourned, and I want

         16  to thank the Chair of the Education Committee for

         17  his indulgence.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 1:20 p.m.)
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